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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ERWE

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | am pleased to
present to our Shareholders the fiscal 2009 annual
results of Hop Fung Group Holdings Limited (the
"Company” and including the subsidiaries of the
Company, the “Group’, "We" “Our” or “Us").

In the first quarter of 2009, the weak global economy
and sharply lower demand for consumer goods from
the EU and the US resulted in a very difficult operating
environment. Through the Chinese government's
stimulus package however, the Group achieved growth
in domestic sales in the second quarter, offsetting the
impact of the decline in the EU and US markets. The
economic recovery starting from the second half of 2009
however, allowed business to recover and pushed the
Group’s overall sales volume up by around 10% year on
year to a record high. This amply demonstrated our solid
business foundation and the fact that we have passed
through the difficulties of the financial crisis.

The Group's strategic decisions in recent years have
allowed our domestic sales to expand rapidly this
year. Our products are strategically integrated from
the upstream (containerboard) to the downstream
(corrugated packaging) and we can adjust in a flexible
manner our sales and develop a diversified customer
network. We are developing businesses outside of
Guangdong Province and are strengthening production
processes and product quality supervision to improve
production efficiency, raise utilization and reduce
production wastage. Our fully integrated business
model can deliver fully our competitive advantages in
an environment of economic volatility and provide high
quality, one stop shop services to customers with our
outstanding corrugated packaging products.

Facing a volatile economic environment, our Group has
minimized inventories and tightened credit controls.
This resulted in the Group maintaining a bad debts ratio
that is close to zero. Strong support from our principal
bankers allowed us to complete Phase 2 of the Qingyuan
power plant in the year, and added one downstream
production line, corrugated box production lines and
printing machines. With our stable leverage policies to
reduce risk, our debt ratios remain conservative.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ETRWE

Looking ahead, as the global economy recovers and
as export markets turn positive, we will seek to exploit
more business opportunities. The continued growth
of the Chinese economy should continue to improve
demand for corrugated packaging products and the
domestic market remains the focus of the Group. Our
sales in the first quarter have reached historic highs
and we have successfully passed on cost increases to
customers, with pricing now close to levels prior to the
financial crisis. This has allowed us to improve gross
and net profits. The upstream linerboard line, which
started operations just prior to the onset of the financial
crisis, should properly contribute to full year earnings in
2010. This coupled with full year contributions from our
new downstream line in Qingyuan make us confident
towards our performance for this year.

To grasp opportunities in expanding the domestic
market, the management has been visiting local
governments in Sichuan, Hubei, Hunan, Guangxi
and Jiangxi as well as local corrugators and other
manufacturers in search of appropriate locations to build
new corrugator plants and develop businesses outside
of Guangdong province. Given the management’s focus
on the downstream business for the last several years,
we believe we can significantly expand domestic sales
and grow our market share.

Last but not least, | would like to take the opportunity
to thank our managers and staff members for their
hard work over the last year, and express my gratitude
towards our customers, suppliers, bankers and
investors. Although the market environment remains
uncertain, the Group remains one of the largest
corrugated packaging manufacturers in Guangdong
Province, and the management remains confident of
providing long term solid returns to shareholders.

Hui Sum Kwok
Chairman
22nd April, 2010
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HOP FUNG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
SEEEERARLDE

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
TEERWE S

BUSINESS OVERVIEW

In the first half of 2009, due to higher domestic sales
offsetting a decline in exports, the Group's sales volume
was similar to that in the first half of 2008, whilst the
utilization of the Group's upstream (linerboard and
medium) and downstream (boxes and boards) lines
came to only 53% and 70%. The economic recovery in
the second half and the Chinese government’s stimulus
package pushed linerboard and corrugating medium
demand sharply higher, and market supply tightened
considerably. As the Group's upstream business focuses
on providing appropriate linerboard and corrugating
medium for our own downstream consumption, and
the new Qingyuan downstream production line started
operations in September, our capacity rose by 9%
and sales volume rose by 38% in the second half
compared to the first half, whilst overall sales volume
rose 10%. Utilization in the second half came to 77%
and 88% for the upstream and downstream businesses,
putting overall utilization for the year at 65% and 79%,
respectively.

In 2009, upstream sales accounted for 14% of total
sales while downstream sales accounted for 86%,
against 4% and 96%, respectively, in 2008. This sales
mix is adjusted by the Group depending on market
pricing and demand changes, and demonstrates the
flexibility of our integrated approach. Product pricing fell
sharply after the financial crisis in 2008, with average
selling prices falling by nearly 40% in the first half of
2009. A recovery in both volume and pricing in the third
quarter however meant that overall 2009 average selling
prices fell by nearly 30% only in 2009.

The sales mix tilted more towards domestic customers
compared to export customers in 2009 (45% vs 55%,
respectively, against 25% and 75% in 2008). Although
average selling prices fell, domestic sales still rose by
30% year on year in 2009 while export sales fell 26%.
This showed that the Chinese government’s stimulus
package helped raise domestic sales to offset the
impact of falling exports. This also showed the ability of
the Group to defend itself against economic volatility.
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HOP FUNG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
SEREERARLE

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
TEERWE S

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Operating results

During 2009, the Group recorded revenue of HK$923.4
million, representing a drop of 10.6% from HK$1,033.2
million. Selling price dropped greatly after the financial
crisis. Though sales volume was maintained in the first
half of 2009, the low selling price led to a great fall in
turnover. However, with great rise in domestic demand
and improvement in economy in the second half, both
sales volume and selling price rose, resulting in a surge
in turnover by 59.9%.

Cost of sales was decreased in line with turnover by
12.9%. Gross profit margin improved from 19.1% to
21.2% despite a slight drop in gross profit from HK$197.8
million to HK$195.6 million. It was mainly due to cost-
saving from self-supply of linerboard for downstream
consumption throughout 2009 compared to five-month
saving in 2008.

Other income decreased by 29.2% from HK$20.7 million
to HK$14.7 million. It was mainly due to decrease in
sales volume and selling price of scrap.

Selling and distribution costs decreased by 22.6%
from HK$46.8 million to HK$36.2 million. The decrease
was primarily due to reduction in delivery cost and
sales commission. Both cost calculations were closely
correlated with selling price.

Administrative expenses slightly decreased by 0.5%
from HK$62.2 million to HK$61.9 million. Although some
expenses were reduced in line with global collapse in
price, higher insurance cost and share based payment
were incurred for new production site and new share
options granted respectively.

Other expenses increased by 74.0% from HK$22.4
million to HK$39.1 million. The increment was
attributable to the depreciation charge for the completion
of two projects at Qingyuan plant. The construction and
installation of the power plant and the downstream
corrugated packaging production line were both
completed in second half of 2009. Moreover, provision
for doubtful debts of HK$3.6 million was made.
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HOP FUNG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
SEEEERARLDE

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
TEERWE S

The Group recorded a drop in earnings before interest
and tax ("EBIT"”) by 16.0% to HK$73.1 million. EBIT
margin was 7.9% (2008: 8.4%).

During the year, additional bank loans were raised
to finance the final stage of the power plant and to
acquire a downstream production line in Qingyuan city.
Finance cost of around HK$6.8 million was capitalised.
Waste paper cost had been increased by 70% within
one year, leading to higher trust receipt loan balance.
Nevertheless, low interest rate in 2009 led to decrease
in finance cost by 10.7% from HK$11.9 million to
HK$10.6 million.

Same as previous years, changes in fair value of
derivative financial instruments and structured borrowing
were recognised in the income statement for accounting
purpose only. They were non-cash in nature and will be
reversed to zero at maturity date.

Some major foreign exchange forward contracts were
matured during the year and their corresponding fair
value amounting to HK$22.1 million were reversed to
zero at maturity date. The structured borrowing again
was proved to be effective as no interest had been
incurred.

Net profit from operation (profit for the year before
changes in fair value of structured borrowing and
derivative financial instruments excluding net settlement)
decreased by 29.8% from HK$73.4 million to HK$51.5
million. The respective net profit margin fell from 7.1% to
5.6%.

Profit for the year increased remarkably by 102.4% from
HK$41.4 million to HK$83.8 million. The increase was
mainly attributable to the reversal of unrealized changes
in fair value of derivative financial instruments and
structured borrowing amounting to HK$22.8 million and
HK$9.5 million respectively.

Net profit margin for the year was 9.1%. Basic earnings
per share was 1735 HK cents (2008: 8.58 HK cents). The
directors proposed a final dividend of 2.20 HK cents per
share (2008: nil).
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HOP FUNG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
SEREERARLE

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
TEERWE S

Liquidity, financial and capital resources

At 31st December, 2009, the Group’'s total cash and
cash equivalents were mostly denominated in Hong
Kong dollars and Renminbi. Bank balances and cash
amounted to HK$174.4 million (2008: HK$254.8 million).
Net current assets and current ratio of the Group were
HK$12.0 million (2008: HK$10.8 million) and 1.02 (2008:
1.03). There was no material change in current ratio.

The Group had capital expenditures amounting to
HK$165.2 million for the final completion stage of
the power plant, acquisition of a new downstream
production line and box-making machineries and other
machinery enhancement.

Inventory turnover was slightly decreased from 56 days
to 55 days. Two-month shipment was basically required
for delivering waste paper from Europe or US to the
PRC.

At 31st December, 2009, trust receipt loans increased
by HK$40.4 million and other trade loans decreased
by HK$45.7 million. New bank loans were raised
amounting to HK$201.5 million for financing the capital
expenditures, indicating continuous support from
principal bankers. Short term and long term bank
borrowings (including bank borrowings and structured
borrowing) decreased by HK$11.8 million and increased
by HK$20.8 million respectively. Net gearing ratio
(measured by total bank borrowings net of cash to equity
attributable to shareholders) was slightly increased to
56.1% (2008: 50.5%).

Contingent liabilities

A tax audit had been conducted by the Inland Revenue
Department in December 2004. The Inland Revenue
Department issued protective assessments for the
years of assessment 1998/1999 to 2005/2006 to certain
subsidiaries of the Group. Objections have been filed
against all these assessments. As the tax audit was still
in progress, in the opinion of the Directors, the outcome
and impact of this matter could not be determined with
reasonable certainty at this stage.
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HOP FUNG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
SEEEERARLDE

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EREBHRRE S

OUTLOOK

Prospects for the global economy have brightened in
the first quarter of 2010 and the Group's sales have
picked up. Pricing has risen by more than 20% from
the end of December 2009 to the end of March 2010,
whilst volumes have jumped 30% vyear on year and
more importantly are now 17% above the same period
in 2008. Sales to domestic clients now account for 50%
of total sales. The newly added downstream line will
contribute fully this year. With both the downstream and
upstream operations on track, we are optimistic towards
our performance in 2010. We are seeking to establish
factories outside of Guangdong Province in order to fully
grasp the business opportunities offered by domestic
sales.
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HOP FUNG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
SEREERARLE

MANAGEMENT PROFILE
TEEERRE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Mr. Hui Sum Kwok, aged 50, is the chairman of the
Board and a co-founder of the Group. He is responsible
for the overall corporate planning, business development
and management of the Group. He has over 25 years
of experience in the corrugated paper-ware industry
in Hong Kong and the PRC. He is a brother of Mr.
Hui Sum Ping (executive director, vice chairman and
substantial shareholder of the Company) and Mr. Hui
Sum Tai (executive director and chief executive officer
of the Company), and the spouse of Ms. Wong Mui. Mr.
Hui Sum Kwok did not hold any other directorship in
companies listed in Hong Kong or overseas in the last 3
years.

Mr. Hui Sum Ping, aged 48, is the vice chairman of the
Board, an executive Director and a co-founder of the
Group. He is responsible for the business development
of the Group. He has over 25 years of experience in the
corrugated paperware industry in Hong Kong and the
PRC. He is a brother of Mr. Hui Sum Kwok (executive
director, chairman and substantial shareholder of the
Company), and Mr. Hui Sum Tai (executive director and
chief executive officer of the Company). Mr. Hui Sum
Ping did not hold any other directorship in companies
listed in Hong Kong or overseas in the last 3 years.

Mr. Hui Sum Tai, aged 43, is the chief executive officer
of the Company and an executive Director. He has joined
the Group since its establishment and is responsible
for the strategic planning and day-to-day management
of the Group. He has over 23 years of experience in the
corrugated paper-ware industry in Hong Kong and the
PRC. He is a brother of Mr. Hui Sum Kwok (executive
director, chairman and substantial shareholder of the
Company) and Mr. Hui Sum Ping (executive director, vice
chairman and substantial shareholder of the Company).
Mr. Hui Sum Tai did not hold any other directorship in
companies listed in Hong Kong or overseas in the last 3
years.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)
Executive Directors (continued)

Mr. Wong Wing Por, aged 48, is an executive Director.
He has joined the Group since its establishment and
is responsible for the sales, marketing and production
management of the Group. Mr. Wong has over 23 years
of experience in the corrugated paper-ware industry
in Hong Kong and the PRC. Mr. Wong Wing Por did
not have any relationship with any director, substantial
shareholder and senior management of the Company.
He did not hold any other directorship in companies
listed in Hong Kong or overseas in the last 3 years.

Ms. Hui Yuen Li, aged 39, is an executive Director and
the company secretary of the Company. Ms. Hui is
responsible for the financial management of the Group.
She is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants and an associate member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Ms.
Hui obtained a degree of Bachelor of Arts with Honours
in Accountancy from the City University of Hong Kong
in 1992. Prior to joining the Group in May 1997 she had
worked in the auditing field for around 5 years which
included working for an international accounting firm.
Ms. Hui Yuen Li did not have any relationship with any
director, substantial shareholder and senior management
of the Company. She did not hold any other directorship
in companies listed in Hong Kong or overseas in the last
3 years.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Liu Kwok Fai, Alvan, aged 47 graduated from the
University of Manitoba in Canada with a bachelor’s
degree of arts in 1985. He thereafter continued to
pursue his legal qualification and completed the law
society’'s final examination at Bristol Polytechnic in the
United Kingdom in 1989. Mr. Liu was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director of the Company on
4th September, 2003. He is currently the senior partner
of a law firm, Messrs. Alvan Liu & Partners, and a China-
appointed attesting officer appointed by the Ministry
of Justice of the PRC. Mr. Liu Kwok Fai, Alvan did not
have any relationship with any director, substantial
shareholder and senior management of the Company.
He resigned as an independent non-executive director
of Fortune Telecom Holdings Limited on 28th February,
2007
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HOP FUNG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
SEREERARLE

MANAGEMENT PROFILE
TEEERRE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)
Independent Non-executive Directors (continued)

Mr. Chee Man Sang, Eric, aged 48, is a practising
Certified Public Accountant in Hong Kong. He graduated
from Birmingham University in 1984 with a Bachelor’s
Degree of Commerce (majoring in Accounting). Mr.
Chee was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director of the Company on 4th September, 2003. He
is currently a senior partner of Chan Chee Cheng & Co,
a firm of Certified Public Accountants. He had worked
in two international accounting firms in Canada and
Hong Kong. Mr. Chee is an associate member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and
a member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of Ontario, Canada. In addition to his appointment to
the Company, he is also an independent non-executive
director of Mastermind Capital Limited (formerly known
as Apex Capital Limited) and Coolpoint Energy Limited
(formerly known as Greater China Technology Group
Limited), both companies listed on the Stock Exchange.
Mr. Chee Man Sang, Eric did not have any relationship
with any director, substantial shareholder and senior
management of the Company.

Mr. Wong Chu Leung, aged 62, has over 25 years of
experience in enterprise management and manufacturing
operation management. Mr. Wong was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director of the Company
on 15th September, 2004. Mr. Wong is currently a
shareholder and a director of certain metal ware and
plastic ware manufacturing companies/corporations with
manufacturing plants located in the PRC. Mr. Wong Chu
Leung did not have any relationship with any director,
substantial shareholder and senior management of
the Company. He did not hold any other directorship in
companies listed in Hong Kong or overseas in the last 3
years.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. Wong Mui, aged 44, is the deputy general manager
of the Group. She has worked for the Group since
its establishment and is responsible for the general
administration of the Group. Ms. Wong is the spouse
of Mr. Hui Sum Kwok (executive director, chairman and
substantial shareholder of the Company).

Mr. Yuen Fu Keung, aged 47 is the project manager of
the Group. He is responsible for project development
and implementation of the Group. Mr. Yuen graduated
from the University of Bath in the United Kingdom in
1986 where he obtained a Bachelor of Science Degree
in Electrical and Electronic Engineering with first class
honours. Prior to joining the Group in November 2003,
he had over 8 years of working experience in corrugating
machinery and control systems.

Ms. Wong Yuk Kwan, aged 38, is the accounting
manager of the Group. She is responsible for the
daily accounting operations of the Group. Ms. Wong
graduated from the University of Houston — Downtown
in the US with a bachelor degree of business
administration majoring in accounting in 1994. Prior to
joining the Group in May 2002, she had worked in the
auditing field for around 7 years which included working
for an international accounting firm.
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HOP FUNG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
SEREERARLE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EREQIHWE

The board of directors (“Board”) of the Company is
pleased to present this Corporate Governance Report
in the Group's annual report for the year ended 31st
December, 2009.

The key corporate governance principles and practices
of the Company are summarized as follows:

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES OF
THE COMPANY

The Group is committed to achieving high standards
of corporate governance to safeguard the interests
of shareholders and to enhance corporate value and
accountability. The Group's corporate governance
principles emphasize the importance of a quality
Board, effective internal controls and accountability to
shareholders.

The Company recognizes the importance of good
corporate governance to its healthy growth and
has devoted considerable efforts to identifying and
formulating corporate governance practices appropriate
to its needs.

The Code on Corporate Governance Practices (the “CG
Code") contained in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the "Stock Exchange”) sets out the
principles of good corporate governance and two levels
of corporate governance practices as follows:

(a) Code provisions, which listed issuers are expected
to comply with or to give considered reasons for
deviation

(b) Recommended best practices for guidance only,
which listed issuers are encouraged to comply with
or to give considered reasons for deviation.

The Company has adopted various measures to ensure
a high standard of corporate governance and has
put in place corporate governance practices that are
considered to be relevant to the Group and to meet the
code provisions as set out in the CG Code.
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Throughout the year under review, the Company has
complied with the code provisions as set out in the CG
Code, save for the deviations from code provisions A.2.1,
A.4.2 and B.1.3 which deviations are explained in the
relevant paragraphs of this Report.

The Company regularly reviews its corporate governance
practices to ensure compliance with the CG Code.

THE BOARD/BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Responsibilities

Overall management of Company business is vested in
the Board, which assumes responsibility for leadership
and control of the Company and is collectively
responsible for promoting the success of the Company
by directing and supervising its affairs. Directors of
the Board take decisions objectively in the interests of
the Company. The Board has delegated to the senior
management the authority and responsibility for the
day-to-day management and operation of the Group. In
addition, the Board has established Board committees
and has delegated to these Board committees various
responsibilities as set out in their respective terms of
reference.

All directors have carried out their duties in good faith
and in compliance with the standards of applicable laws
and regulations, and have acted in the interests of the
Company and its shareholders at all times.

Delegation of Management Functions

The Board reserves for its decision all major matters
of the Company including: approval and monitoring
of all policy matters, overall strategies and budgets,
internal control and risk management systems, material
transactions (in particular those that may involve conflict
of interests), financial information, appointment of
directors and other significant financial and operational
matters.

All directors have full and timely access to all relevant
information as well as the advice and services of the
Company Secretary, with a view to ensuring that Board
procedures and all applicable laws and regulations
are followed. Each director is normally able to seek
independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances at the Company’'s expense, upon making
request to the Board.
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The day-to-day management, administration and
operation of the Company are delegated to the Chief
Executive Officer and the senior management. The
delegated functions and responsibilities are periodically
reviewed. Approval has to be obtained from the Board
prior to any significant transactions entered into by the
aforesaid officers.

The Board has the full support of the Chief Executive
Officer and the senior management for the discharge of
its responsibilities.

Board Composition

The Board currently comprises 8 members, consisting of
5 executive directors and 3 independent non-executive
directors.

The Board of the Company comprises the following
directors:

Executive directors:

Hui Sum Kwok Chairman

Hui Sum Ping — Vice-Chairman

Hui Sum Tai — Chief Executive Officer
Wong Wing Por

HuiYuen Li — Company Secretary and

Member of Remuneration
Committee

Independent non-executive directors:

Liu Kwok Fai, Alvan - Chairman of Audit Committee
Chee Man Sang, Eric = Member of Audit Committee
and Chairman of Remuneration
Committee

Member of Audit Committee
and Remuneration Committee

Wong Chu Leung -

The list of directors (by category) is also disclosed in
all corporate communications issued by the Company
from time to time pursuant to the Listing Rules. The
independent non-executive directors are expressly
identified in all corporate communications pursuant to
the Listing Rules.

The relationships among the members of the Board are
disclosed under “Management Profile” on pages 11
to 14.
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During the year ended 31st December, 2009, the Board
at all times met the requirements of the Listing Rules
relating to the appointment of at least three independent
non-executive directors with at least one independent
non-executive director possessing appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise.

The Company has received written annual confirmation
from each independent non-executive director of his
independence pursuant to the requirements of the
Listing Rules. The Company considers all independent
non-executive directors to be independent in accordance
with the independence guidelines as set out in the
Listing Rules.

All directors, including independent non-executive
directors, have brought a wide spectrum of valuable
business experience, knowledge and professionalism
to the Board for its efficient and effective functioning.
Independent non-executive directors have been invited
to serve on the Audit and Remuneration Committees of
the Company.

Appointment, Re-election and Removal of Directors

The procedures and process of appointment, re-election
and removal of directors are laid down in the Company’s
Articles of Association. The Board as a whole is
responsible for reviewing Board composition, developing
and formulating procedures for nomination and
appointment of directors, monitoring the appointment
and succession planning of directors and assessing the
independence of independent non-executive directors.

All the independent non-executive directors of the
Company are appointed for a specific term and subject
to re-election.

In accordance with the Company's Articles of
Association, all directors of the Company are subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years.
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Code provision A.4.2 of the CG Code stipulates that all
directors appointed to fill a casual vacancy should be
subject to election by shareholders at the first general
meeting after their appointment. The Company’s Articles
of Association deviate from Code Provision A.4.2 of
the CG Code which provides that any new director
appointed by the Board during the year shall hold office
until the next following annual general meeting after
appointment, when he/she shall be eligible for re-
election.

The Board reviews its own structure, size and
composition regularly to ensure that it has a balance
of expertise, skills and experience appropriate for the
requirements of the business of the Company.

Where vacancies on the Board exist, the Board shall
carry out the selection process by making reference to
the skills, experience, professional knowledge, personal
integrity and time commitments of the proposed
candidates, the Company’'s needs and other relevant
statutory requirements and regulations. An external
recruitment agency may be engaged to carry out the
recruitment and selection process where necessary.

In addition, Mr Hui Sum Ping, Ms Hui Yuen Li and
Mr Wong Chu Leung shall retire by rotation and
being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting. The Company's
circular dated 30th April, 2010 contains detailed
information of the retiring directors standing for re-
election.

The Board recommended the re-appointment of the
retiring directors at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company.

Training Induction and Continuing Development of
Directors

Each newly appointed director receives formal,
comprehensive and tailored induction on the first
occasion of his/her appointment to ensure appropriate
understanding of the business and operations of the
Company and full awareness of director’s responsibilities
and obligations under the Listing Rules and relevant
statutory requirements. Such induction shall be
supplemented by visits to the Company's key plant sites
and meetings with senior management of the Company.
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Directors are continually updated on developments in
the statutory and regulatory regime and the business
environment to facilitate the discharge of their
responsibilities. Continuing briefing and professional
development for directors will be arranged where
necessary.

Board Meetings
Number of Meetings and Directors’ Attendance

During the year ended 31st December, 2009, four regular
Board meetings were held at approximately quarterly
intervals for reviewing and approving the financial and
operating performance, and considering and approving
the overall strategies and policies of the Company. The
average attendance rate was approximately 100%. Apart
from the regular Board meetings, a board meeting was
held on 7th July, 2009 to approve granting of share
options and the attendance rate of that meeting was
100%.

The attendance records of each director at the meetings
of the Board, Remuneration Committee and Audit
Committee during the year ended 31st December, 2009
are set out below:
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Attendance/Number of Meetings

SBHERKE

Remuneration Audit
Name of Directors Board Committee Committee
EENS EEg FMEES EREES
Hui Sum Kwok FF AR B 5 N/A 1~ 38 2
Hui Sum Ping AT 5 N/A & R 2
Hui Sum Tai TFRER 5 N/A i F 2
Wong Wing Por T & 5 N/A 3@ Z
HuiYuen Li & 151 A 5 1 3
Liu Kwok Fai, Alvan B pE 4 N/A 7~ i& A 3
Chee Man Sang, Eric R4 5 1 3
Wong Chu Leung 87 670 5 L 3
Practices and Conduct of Meetings EFEEHREBZET

Annual meeting schedules and draft agenda of each
meeting are normally made available to directors in
advance.
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Notice of regular Board meetings is served to all
directors at least 14 days before the meeting. For other
Board and committee meetings, reasonable notice is
generally given.

Board papers together with all appropriate, complete
and reliable information are sent to all directors at least 3
days before each Board meeting or committee meeting
to keep directors apprised of the latest developments
and financial position of the Company and to enable
them to make informed decisions. The Board and each
director also have separate and independent access to
the senior management where necessary.

The Chief Executive Officer and Company Secretary
had attended all regular Board meetings and where
necessary, other Board and committee meetings,
to advise on business developments, financial and
accounting matters, statutory and regulatory compliance,
corporate governance and other major aspects of the
Company.

The Company Secretary is responsible for taking and
keeping minutes of all Board meetings and committee
meetings. Draft minutes are normally circulated to
directors for comment within a reasonable time after
each meeting and final versions are open for directors’
inspection.

According to current Board practice, any material
transaction, which involves a conflict of interests for a
substantial shareholder or a director, will be considered
and dealt with by the Board at a duly convened Board
meeting. The Company’s Articles of Association contain
provisions requiring directors to abstain from voting
and not to be counted in the quorum at meetings for
approving transactions in which such directors or any of
their associates have a material interest.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER

The Chairman of the Board is Mr Hui Sum Kwok and the
Chief Executive Officer is Mr Hui Sum Tai. The positions
of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer are held by
separate persons in order to preserve independence
and a balance of views and judgment. The Chairman
provides leadership and is responsible for the effective
functioning of the Board in accordance with good
corporate governance practice. The Chief Executive
Officer focuses on implementing objectives, policies and
strategies approved and delegated by the Board.

The Board of Directors considers that the responsibilities
of the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer respectively
are clear and distinctive and no written terms on division
of responsibilities between Chairman and the Chief
Executive Officer are necessary. This deviates from the
Code Provision A.2.1 of the CG Code which stipulates
that the division of responsibilities between chairman
and chief executive officer should be established and set
out in writing.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established two committees, namely,
the Remuneration Committee and Audit Committee, for
overseeing particular aspects of the Company's affairs.
All Board committees of the Company are established
with defined written terms of reference. The terms
of reference of the Board committees are available to
shareholders upon request.

The majority of the members of each Board committee
are independent non-executive directors.

Board committees are provided with sufficient resources
to discharge their duties and, upon reasonable request,
are able to seek independent professional advice in
appropriate circumstances at the Company's expense.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprises 3 members,
namely Mr Chee Man Sang, Eric (Chairman), Mr Wong
Chu Leung and Ms Hui Yuen Li, and the majority of
them are independent non-executive directors.
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The primary functions of the Remuneration Committee
include the following:

e To make recommendations on the establishment
of procedures for developing the remuneration
policy and structure for the executive director, which
policy shall ensure that no director or any of his/her
associates will participate in deciding his/her own
remuneration

e To make recommendations on the remuneration
packages of the executive directors

e To review and approve the remuneration packages
of the executive directors by reference to the
performance of the individual and the Company as
well as market practice and conditions

e To review and approve the compensation
arrangements for the executive directors

The Human Resources Department is responsible for
collection and administration of the human resources
data and making recommendations to the Remuneration
Committee for consideration. The Remuneration
Committee consults with the Chairman and/or the
Chief Executive Officer of the Company about these
recommendations on remuneration policy and structure
and remuneration packages.

The Remuneration Committee met once during the
year ended 31st December, 2009 and reviewed the
remuneration policy and structure of the Company,
and the remuneration packages as well as the annual
bonuses of the executive directors for the year under
review. The attendance rate of the Remuneration
Committee Meeting was 100%.

Meanwhile, the remuneration of the senior management
of the Company is not considered by the Remuneration
Committee and this deviates from the Code Provision
B.1.3 of the CG Code.

Currently, the remuneration of the senior management
is attended by the Chairman and/or Chief Executive
Officer of the Company.
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Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises three independent
non-executive directors, namely Mr Liu Kwok Fai, Alvan
(Chairman), Mr Chee Man Sang, Eric and Mr Wong Chu
Leung (including one independent non-executive director
with the appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting or related financial management expertise).
None of the members of the Audit Committee is a
former partner of the Company’s existing external
auditors.

The main duties of the Audit Committee include the
following:

e To review the financial statements and reports and
consider any significant or unusual items raised by
the staff responsible for the accounting and financial
reporting function, compliance officer, internal auditor
or external auditors before submission to the Board

e To review the relationship with the external auditors
by reference to the work performed by the auditors,
their fees and terms of engagement, and make
recommendations to the Board on the appointment,
re-appointment and removal of external auditors

e To review the adequacy and effectiveness of the
Company’s financial reporting system, internal control
system and risk management system and associated
procedures.

The Audit Committee held three meetings during the
year ended 31st December, 2009 to review the financial
results and reports, financial reporting and compliance
procedures, the Company’s internal control and risk
management systems and processes, and the re-
appointment of the external auditors. The attendance
records of the Audit Committee are set out under “Board
Meetings"” on page 20.

The Company’s annual results for the year ended 31st
December, 2009 have been reviewed by the Audit
Committee.
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted its own code of conduct
regarding directors’ dealings in the Company’s securities
(The "Company's Code"”) on terms no less exacting than
the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Issuers (the "Model Code”) as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.

Specific enquiry has been made of all the directors and
the directors have confirmed that they have complied
with the Model Code throughout the year ended 31st
December, 2009.

The Company has also established written guidelines
on no less exacting terms than the Model Code
(the "Employees Written Guidelines”) for securities
transactions by employees who are likely to be in
possession of unpublished price-sensitive information of
the Company.

No incident of non-compliance of the Employees
Written Guidelines by the employees was noted by the
Company.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES IN
RESPECT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors acknowledged their responsibility for
preparing the financial statements of the Company for
the year ended 31st December, 2009.

The directors are responsible for overseeing the
preparation of financial statements of the Company with
a view to ensuring that such financial statements give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and
that relevant statutory and regulatory requirements and
applicable accounting standards are complied with.

The Management has provided to the Board such
explanation and information as are necessary to enable
the Board to carry out an informed assessment of the
Company's financial statements, which are put to the
Board for approval. The Board has received from the
senior management the management accounts and
such accompanying explanation and information as are
necessary to enable the Board to make an informed
assessment for approving the financial statements.
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EXTERNAL AUDITOR AND AUDITOR’S
REMUNERATION

The statement of the external auditor of the Company
about their reporting responsibilities for the financial
statements is set out in the “Independent Auditor’'s
Report” on page 50 and 51.

HOP FUNG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
SEEEERARLDE

SRR AT B R BT 2 B &

ARBISINEZBEERBERRYBRER LA
E2 BAHNEL0 %51 B[ 187 ZEE RS |

During the year ended 31st December, 2009, the REZ_ZTZTNFT+_A=+—HILFE -
remuneration paid/payable to the Company's external ZANRQ A [AINEZ EREN = E) » B =R 5 2 516D
auditor, Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, is set out below: TEN/ENZMEEI T
Category of services Fee paid/payable
REER B ENER
HK$
/%E
Audit services % Bk 75 1,480,000
Non-audit services FEAZ B AR 7
— Preliminary review — ) H %R 20,000
— Compliance review —&5#HEH 112,000
1,612,000
INTERNAL CONTROLS A EB BE 1
During the year under review, the Board conducted REEFA EFFE I AEE AN EE
a review of the effectiveness of the internal control %JF:Z@Z B BREERIEAN - ARAB
system of the Company, including the adequacy of ﬁ?a*&ﬁsz$$&2é112§}?&£‘<‘%ﬁ LA
resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the NEF ZHIFHEILES -
Company's accounting and financial reporting function,
and their training programmes and budget.
The Board is responsible for maintaining an adequate % £ & B & 4 5 52 = A #6 B2 12 &l 2 LAAR 5 A
internal control system to safeguard shareholder :&ﬂ\ﬂﬁ?ﬂ'ﬁﬁé{&$@\ﬁj2§i§ W EHFR
investments and Company assets and reviewing the &l L A& °

effectiveness of such on an annual basis.

The Audit Committee oversees the internal control
system of the Group, reports to the Board on any
material issues and makes recommendations.
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The internal control system of the Group is designed to
facilitate effective and efficient operations, to ensure
reliability of financial reporting and compliance with
applicable laws and regulations, to identify and manage
potential risks, and to safeguard assets of the Group. The
internal auditor and the senior management review and
evaluate the control process, monitor any risk factors on
a regular basis, and report to the Audit Committee on
any findings and measures to address the variances and
identified risks.

COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS
AND INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company considers that effective communication
with shareholders is essential for enhancing investor
relations and investor understanding of the Group's
business performance and strategies. The Company also
recognizes the importance of transparency and timely
disclosure of corporate information, which will enable
shareholders and investors to make the best investment
decisions.

The general meetings of the Company provide a
forum for communication between the Board and the
shareholder. The Chairman of the Board as well as
chairmen of the Remuneration Committee and Audit
Committee or, in their absence, other members of
the respective committees and, where applicable, the
chairman of the independent Board committee, are
available to answer questions at shareholder meetings.

The 2009 Annual General Meeting ("AGM"”) was held
on 8th June, 2009. The notice of AGM was sent to
shareholders at least 20 clear business days before the
AGM.

To promote effective communication, the Company
maintains a website at www.hopfunggroup.com, where
up-to-date extensive information and updates on the
Company’s business operations and developments,
financial information, corporate governance practices
and other information are posted.
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SHAREHOLDER RIGHTS

To safeguard shareholder interests and rights, a separate
resolution is proposed for each substantially separate
issue at shareholder meetings, including the election of
individual directors.

All resolutions put forward at shareholder meetings will
be voted on by poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and poll
results will be posted on the websites of the Company
and of the Stock Exchange after each shareholder
meeting.
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The Directors have pleasure in presenting their report
and the audited consolidated financial statements of the
Group for the year ended 31st December, 2009.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company.
The principal activities of its principal subsidiaries are set
out in note 33 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31st
December, 2009 are set out in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income on page 52.

An interim dividend of 1.00 HK cent per share,
amounting to approximately HK$4,829,000 in respect of
2009 was calculated by reference to 482,924,000 shares
in issue on 16th October, 2009 and was paid to the
shareholders of the Company on 23rd October, 2009.

The Directors now recommend the payment of a final
dividend of 2.20 HK cents per share to the shareholders
of the Company whose names appear on the register of
members on 7th June, 2010.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities
of the Group for the past five financial years is set out on
page 120.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and
equipment of the Group during the year are set out in
note 15 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the
Company during the year are set out in note 24 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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SHARE PREMIUM AND RESERVES

Movements in the share premium and reserves of the
Group for the year ended 31st December, 2009 are set
out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity
on page 54.

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to
the date of this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Hui Sum Kwok, Chairman

Mr. Hui Sum Ping, Vice Chairman

Mr. Hui Sum Tai, Chief Executive Officer
Mr. Wong Wing Por

Ms. HuiYuen Li

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Liu Kwok Fai, Alvan
Mr. Chee Man Sang, Eric
Mr. Wong Chu Leung

In accordance with Article 87(1) of the Company’s
Articles of Association, Mr. Hui Sum Ping, Ms. Hui Yuen
Li and Mr. Wong Chu Leung shall retire from office by
rotation in the forthcoming annual general meeting and,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a
service agreement with the Company for a term of one
year commencing 15th September, 2009, which may
be terminated by not less than three months' notice in
writing served by either party.

Save as disclosed above, no Director proposed for re-
election at the forthcoming annual general meeting
has a service contract with the Company or any of its
subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Group
within one year without payment of compensation,
other than statutory compensation.
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DIRECTORS (continued)

The Company has received, from each of the
independent non-executive Directors, an annual
confirmation of his independence pursuant to the Listing
Rules. The Company considers all the independent non-
executive Directors are independent.

The biographical details of the directors and
senior management of the Company are set out in
Management Profile on pages 11 to 14 of this report.

SHARE OPTIONS

Particulars of the Company’s share option scheme
are set out in note 26 to the consolidated financial
statements.

The following table discloses movements in the
Company’s share options during the year:

EE#)

ARBDERESBEIFNANTEERELDAR
A e BIMEFRZFREERE - AR F
RE 2RBYUFANTESTHARBIAL -

ARRAEELRSREREBREEFBERNASE
BENZ4EEERERE -

B

ARFBBES S HERARARBERE
i 5526 °

TREBARABRERFAZESD :

Outstanding
Outstanding Granted Exercised Cancelled atend of
Exercisable  at beginning during during during the year
Category Option type Date of grant price  of the year the year the year the year g4
g5l BREER REAH THE FOEAGE ERRE ERfIE FhE# WA
(Note 1) HK$
(Hf3E1) AT
Directors
gz
Mr. Hui Sum Kwok (Note 2) D 295.2007 2.640 1,893,000 - - - 1,893,000
ARERLE (HE2) E 772009 0.752 - 4828000 - - 488000
Mr. Hui Sum Ping D 295.2007 2.640 1,893,000 - - - 1,893,000
ARTLE E 772009 0.752 - 488000 - - 4828000
Mr. Hui Sum Tai D 295.2007 2.640 3,678,360 - - - 3,678,360
AREEE E 772009 0.752 - 488000 - - 4828000
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SHARE OPTIONS (continued) BRREE)
Outstanding
Outstanding Granted Exercised Cancelled atend of
Exercisable  at beginning during during during the year
Category Option type Date of grant price  of the year the year the year the year E4
£5l BREERR RYBH THE FOEAGE FRRH ERfR FhEs HAT R
[Note 1) HKS
(&) AT
Directors
gz
Mr. Wong Wing Por D 295.2007 2,640 1,500,000 - - - 1,500,000
IXREE E 772009 0.752 - 488000 - - 4828000
Ms. HuiYuen Li D 29.5.2007 2,640 1,100,000 - - - 1,100,000
AL E 772009 0.752 - 1,100,000 - - 1100000
Mr. Liu Kwok Fai, Alvan D 29.5.2007 2,640 120,000 - - - 120,000
BEELE E 772009 0.752 - 120,000 - - 120,000
Mr. Chee Man Sang, Eric D 29.5.2007 2640 120,000 - - - 120,000
ARERE E 772009 0.752 - 120,000 - - 120,000
Mr.Wong Chu Leung D 29.5.2007 2640 120,000 - - - 120,000
BRRtE E 772009 0.752 - 120,000 - - 120,000
10424360 20,772,000 - - 31,196,360
Other employees D 295.2007 2.640 7950,000 = = = 7950,000
HibEE E 772009 0.752 - 9,228,000 - - 9,228,000
7950,000 9,228,000 - - 17178,000
Total all categories
FHER 18374,360 30,000,000 - - 48,374,360

ANNUAL REPORT 2009 —ZZhFFH



HOP FUNG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
SEREERARLE

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EFEERE

SHARE OPTIONS (continued)

Notes:

1.

The vesting period of the share options granted is determined by
Directors at each time when the options are granted. Holders of
share options granted under the Company's share option scheme
may only exercise their options during the exercisable periods as
follows:

BREE)
B
L BRBREZRENAEENGRELBRESE

EoARBBERETS THBEERAEAETRUT
TTEBITEEF 2 BAE

Option type D Option type E Maximum % of share options exercisable

D & IR & EXE 8 IR & ATEBEREZRESAEIL

1.3.2008 - 28.2.2009 1.56.2010 - 30.4.2011 up to 50%
& Al E50%

1.3.2009 - 28.2.2010 1.5.2011 - 30.4.2012 up to 75% (to the extent not already exercised)
Hm Al ET5% (A RITEERR)

1.3.2010 - 28.2.2011 1.5.2012 - 30.4.2013 up to 100% (to the extent not already exercised)

% A 100% (LA A 1T % AR)

Out of the 1,893,000 type D share options and 4,828,000 type E
share options granted, Mr. Hui Sum Kwok was directly interested
in 1,393,000 type D share options and 4,328,000 type E share
options respectively and was deemed to be interested in
500,000 type D share options and 500,000 type E share options
respectively owned by Ms. Wong Mui, who is the spouse of Mr.
Hui Sum Kwok and a member of the senior management of the
Group.

At 31st December, 2009, the number of shares in

respect of which options had been granted and remained
outstanding under the Scheme was 48,374,360,
representing approximately 10% of the shares of the
Company in issue at that date.

2. RE & 21,893,00017D4E B8 f% 4 & 4,828,000 E4A
BEARHE A - B AR B SL A BIAA 1,393,000 DAE B A% 18
4,328 000 EEEREF I BEEEER W HEA
REBLZET(FHFERAECEBRAEESRERE
& 8) 5 Bl # B 2 500,000 D48 & B% 4 X 500,00010E
JEEREREAER -

R-ZZEEAF+_A=1+—8 - BEZ:TE
%ﬁﬁﬁr‘ﬁi? FHERESR2ROHEE B
48,374,360/ * H9Mh AN BE HEEITKH

10% -
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES, EE=ERR#% - HBEROREZF2®EHS
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed above, at 31st December, 2009, B I X EEIN R_ZEZNLF+ =B
the interests and/or short positions of the Directors =-+—H - ZRB ARG RIBEE S LB E &G
and their associates in the shares, underlying shares ([BS5REEEH]) E3IEZIREERFZ
and debentures of the Company and its associated ZREMFAEs: BB LT A ESHEITE
corporations within the meaning of the Securities and 35X SHEETFHEMNE AR LEAH S
Futures Ordinance ("SFQO"), as recorded in the register X S FBER ATR([BAH])E ESELEE
maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of VHEBA+TRAAARLREEE B (TR
the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and F 4 R EIE G0 2 &M - HBEKRD RESHT
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock A xR AR MT -

Exchange”) pursuant to the Model Code for Securities

Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies, were as

follows:
(a) Shares (a) Bz 3
Approximate
Company / percentage of
Name of associated Number and issued share capital
Name of director corporation Capacity class of securities EERTRE
38 ADF/RBEEER 5% Z5HAREN BOBAY
Mr. Hui Sum Kwok Company Founder of a discretionary 252,000,000 shares 52.18%
TRELE LN trust / interest of controlled Long position (Note 1)
corporations 252,000,008 3
RRERALL/ sy AGRE)
REEEER
Mr. Hui Sum Kwok Company Beneficial owner 10,014,000 shares 2.07%
SRELE LYNG ERAERA Long position
10,014,0008 & (3
e
Mr. Hui Sum Kwok Company Interest of spouse 500,000 shares 0.10%
TRELE LN [EpE 3 Long position
500,000% {3
55
Mr. Hui Sum Ping Company Founder of a discretionary 252,000,000 shares 52.18%
TARTEE LN trust / interest of controlled Long position (Note 1)
corporations 252,000,008 3
RRERALL/ 2 ()
REEEER
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HOP FUNG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
CEKEEZERERLT

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EFEERE

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES, EERKM - HERORESZF2ES
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES )

(continued)
(a) Shares (continued) (a) 17 (&)
Approximate
Company / percentage of
Name of associated Number and issued share capital
Name of director corporation Capacity class of securities ERBTRE
38 ADF/RBEELHE 5% E5HAREN CEERD
Mr. Hui Sum Ping Company Beneficial owner 7894,000 shares 163%
FRTRE LN EEEEA Long position
7894,000 Bt {3
e
Mr. Hui Sum Tai Company Interest of a controlled Nil {Note 1) -
TRRLE LN corporation &(ht)
RBLEER
Mr. Hui Sum Tai Company Beneficial owner 6,246,000 shares 129%
TRREE LN EEEEA Long position
6,246,000 f 1
e
Mr. Wong Wing Por Company Founder of a discretionary Nil {Note 1) -
IRRAE LN trust/ interest of controlled & (k)
corporations
2RRHHTA/
REEEER
Mr. Wong Wing Por Company Beneficial owner 6,020,000 shares 125%
IRREE LYNG EEBAA Long position
6,020, 0008 3
e
Ms. Hui Yuen Li Company Beneficial owner 3,670,000 shares 0.76%
SRt LN EEEEA Long position
3,670,008 (3
e
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EFEERE

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

(continued)

(a) Shares (continued)

HOP FUNG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
GEKEEZERERLT

(a) R 14 (&)

EERKRD  HBROREZzZES
()

Approximate
Company / percentage of
Name of associated Number and issued share capital
Name of director corporation Capacity class of securities ERBTRE
38 ADF/RBEELHE 5% E5HAREN CEERD
Mr. Liu Kwok Fai, Alvan Company Beneficial owner 222,000 shares 0.05%
BEBLE LN EEEEA Long position
222,000% 3
iR
Mr. Chee Man Sang, Eric Company Beneficial owner 96,000 Shares 0.02%
BRERE ARA ERBBA Long position
9,000 & 7
iR
Mr. Hui Sum Kwok Hop Fung Industries Limited Founder of a discretionary 7886 shares of US$0.01 each 78.86%
TRE%E (“Hop Fung Industries”) trust /interest of controlled Long position (Notes 1and 2)
corporations T836REREBONET 2 KM
2ERETETA/ 2 (fE1R2)
RBEEER
Mr. Hui Sum Ping Hop Fung Industries Founder of a discretionary 7886 shares of US$0.01 each 78.86%
FRTEE trust /interest of controlled Long position (Notes 1and 2)
corporations T80 RABONET 2 Kl
2BRETETA/ 72 (f1R2)
RBEEER
Mr. Hui Sum Tai Hop Fung Industries Beneficial owner 857 shares of US$0.01 each 8.57%
HRREE EEEAA Long position (Notes 1 and 2)
TR EREENET 2 Kl
GRS
Mr. Wong Wing Por Hop Fung Industries Founder of a discretionary 1,257 shares of US$0.01 each 12.57%
IRREE trust / interest of a controlled Long position (Notes 1 and 2)
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HOP FUNG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
CEKEEZERERLT

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EFEERE

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

EERKRD  HBROREZzZES

. (%)
(continued)
(a) Shares (continued) (a) 13 (&)
Approximate
Company / percentage of
Name of associated Number and issued share capital
Name of director corporation Capacity class of securities ERBTRE
38 ADF/RBEELHE 5% E5HAREN CEERD
Mr. Hui Sum Kwok Hop Fung Industries Beneficial owner / founder 5,000 shares of US$0.01 each 50%
FRE%E (Holdings) Limited of a discretionary trust / Long position (Notes 1and 3)
(“Hop Fung Industries BVI") interest of a controlled 5000k ERAGNETL KR
corporation i 2 (FisE1 R3)
EalEEA/
2ERETETA/
RBEEER
Mr. Hui Sum Ping Hop Fung Industries BVI Beneficial owner / founder 5,000 shares of US$0.01 each 50%
FRTEE of a discretionary trust / Long position (Notes 1and 3)
interest of a controlled 5,000% S RAB0.0ET 2B
corporation Y AGEINE)
EalEEA/
2ERETETA/
RBEEER
Mr. Hui Sum Kwok Gong Ming Hop Fung Interest of controlled 3,000,000 non-voting 100%
HRELE Paper Ware Factory Limited corporations deferred shares of HK$1 each
(“Hop Fung GM") REEEER Long and short positions
ARSEAREERAR (Notes 1 and 4)
([5ERH)) 3000000R B REE
1B EREFEELR
8 RkE (1 Ra)
Mr. Hui Sum Ping Hop Fung GM Founder of a discretionary 3,000,000 non-voting 100%
FRTEE AENE trust / interest of controlled deferred shares of HK$1 each
corporations Long and short positions
EEFEUN/ (Notes 1 and 4
REzEER 3000000k &R A E
1B BRFEELR

e kAR (W1 k)
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EFEERE

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

(continued)

(a) Shares (continued)

HOP FUNG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
GEKEEZERERLT

(a) R 14 (&)

EERKRD  HBROREZzZES

(%)

Approximate
Company / percentage of
Name of associated Number and issued share capital
Name of director corporation Capacity class of securities ERBTRE
38 ADF/RBEELHE 5% E5HAREN CEERD
MrHui Sum Tai Hop Fung GM Interest of a controlled Nil {Notes 1 and 4] -
TRRLE AENE corporation / short &(ME1Ra)
position of a controlled
corporation
REiEEs/
RBLEKE
Mr. Wong Wing Por Hop Fung GM Interest of a controlled Nil {Notes 1 and 4 -
IRRLE AENE corporation &(M1Ra)
RBEEER
Mr. Hui Sum Kwok Fung Kong Hop Fung Interest of controlled 3,000,000 non-voting 100%
TRE%E Paper Ware Factory Limited corporations deferred shares of HK$1 each
(“Hop Fung FG") REEEER Long and short positions
BHE B nRARAR (Notes 1, 4and 5)
([22BE]) 3000000R B REE
1B BERZRELR
i#8 RkE (1 4R5)
Mr. Hui Sum Ping Hop Fung FG Founder of a discretionary 3,000,000 non-voting 100%
FRTEE AEEH trust / interest of controlled deferred shares of HK$1 each
corporations Long and short positions
2REFETA/ (Notes 1, 4 and 5)
RiErEER 3000000R B REE
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HOP FUNG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
CEKEEZERERLT

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EFEERE

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

EERKRD  HBROREZzZES

. (%)
(continued)
(a) Shares (continued) (a) &2 (&)
Approximate
Company / percentage of
Name of associated Number and issued share capital
Name of director corporation Capacity class of securities ERBTRE
4.3 ADF/RBLEAE 5% R5HERER BOBAR
Mr. Hui Sum Tai Hop Fung FG Interest of a controlled Nil {Notes 1, 4 and 5) -
TRRRE AEREE corporation / short E (M1 4R5)
position of a controlled
corporation
REiEEs/
REEEKE
Mr. Wong Wing Por Hop Fung FG Interest of a controlled Nil {Notes 1, 4 and 5) -
IRRRE AEREE corporation / short & (W51 4]5)
position of a controlled
corporation
REiEEs/
REEENKE
Mr. Hui Sum Kwok Applewood Forest Limited Founder of a discretionary trust 1 share of US$1 100%
SRELE RRETHUA Long position (Notes 1 and 6)
\REEIZTZRA
72 (Kt ko)
Mr. Hui Sum Kwok Profit Luck Limited Founder of a discretionary trust 100 shares of HK$1 100%
TRELE HHEBERAA RRETETA Long position (Notes 1, 6 and 7)

00RERAEETZRH
F& (K1 6R7)
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EFERE

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

(continued)

(a) Shares (continued)

Notes:

1.

ANNUAL REPORT 2009

The 252,000,000 shares are owned by Hop Fung Industries.
The issued share capital of Hop Fung Industries is owned
as to 78.86%, 12.57% and 8.57% by Hop Fung Industries
BVI, Delight Ocean Limited (“Delight”) and Mr. Hui Sum Tai
respectively.

The issued share capital of Hop Fung Industries BVI is owned
as to 11.81%, 11.81%, 38.19% and 38.19% by Mr. Hui
Sum Kwok, Mr. Hui Sum Ping, Fullwood Holdings Limited
("Fullwood”) and Goldspeed Holdings Limited (“Goldspeed”)
respectively. Fullwood is wholly owned by Pinecity
Investments Limited (“Pinecity”) and Pinecity is wholly owned
by HSBC International Trustee Limited (“HSBC") in its capacity
as the trustee of Hui & Wong 2004 Family Trust, a discretionary
trust the founder of which is Mr. Hui Sum Kwok and the
discretionary objects of which include family members of
Mr. Hui Sum Kwok. Goldspeed is wholly owned by Goldkeen
Assets Management Limited (“Goldkeen”) and Goldkeen is
wholly owned by HSBC in its capacity as the trustee of HSP
2004 Family Trust, a discretionary trust the founder of which
is Mr. Hui Sum Ping and the discretionary objects of which
include family members of Mr. Hui Sum Ping. Accordingly,
each of Mr. Hui Sum Kwok and Mr. Hui Sum Ping is deemed to
be interested in the 252,000,000 shares under the SFO.

Delight is wholly owned by Richfaith Assets Management
Limited (”Richfaith”) and Richfaith is wholly owned by HSBC
in its capacity as the trustee of Wong's 2004 Family Trust, a
discretionary trust the founder of which is Mr. Wong Wing Por
and the discretionary objects of which include family members
of Mr. Wong Wing Por.

Hop Fung Industries is a holding company of the Company and
therefore an associated corporation of the Company under the
SFO. The entire issued share capital of Hop Fung Industries
is US$100 divided into 10,000 shares of US$0.01 each which
is owned as to 7,886, 1,257 and 857 shares by Hop Fung
Industries BVI, Delight and Mr. Hui Sum Tai respectively. Under
the SFO, each of Mr. Hui Sum Kwok and Mr. Hui Sum Ping is
deemed to be interested in the 7886 shares of US$0.01 each
and Mr. Wong Wing Por is deemed to be interested in the 1,257
shares of US$0.01 each in Hop Fung Industries.

—ERNEFER

HOP FUNG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
SEEEERARLDE

EERRN  HEAROEESZZ2ER
(%)

(a) R 14 (&)

GEX

1.

#%252,000,000% % {5 FAHop Fung Industries# & °
Hop Fung Industriest, # 17 % 74X % 51 fAHop Fung
Industries BVI * Delight Ocean Limited ([ Delight])
KRR EHEBT78.86% ~ 12.57%18.57% °

Hop Fung Industries BVIZ B 31T A& 2~ 5 Bl (8 57 7
Bl S A&~ FF % F %4 - Fullwood Holdings Limited
([Fullwood]) XGoldspeed Holdings Limited
(IGoldspeed]) # A 11.81% - 11.81% -~ 38.19%
K 38.19% © FullwoodHPinecity Investments
Limited ([Pinecity |) & & # %& ° Pinecityf
HSBC International Trustee Limited (HSBCJ) 1A
Hui & Wong 2004 Family Trust2 st A Z & 5 2 &
BE  -ZiEAR—EIERGET  HAZARHTR
B4  2RERURBEETREL L2 RIEK
B ° GoldspeedfiGoldkeen Assets Management
Limited ([ Goldkeen|) & & # & + MGoldkeenH
HSBCLAHSP 2004 Family Trust2 sEA 2 & D &2 &
BE  ZEEAR—EEIERGT HAZARTR
FhE REEAHRBEIARTAEEZRERK
8 Al REBEFEHFLBERD  FHRBEELEER
FFAR T A E B R R A 52252,000,000 A% Bk
Mz -

DelightfiRichfaith Assets Management Limited
([Richfaith]) & & # % - MRichfaithEAHSBCLA
Wong' s 2004 Family Trust2 st A 2 B D 2 & #
BoZfatR—HE2ERER  HAZARIRE
Sk 2RGTEHRPEETRELAEZREKE -

Hop Fung Industries]y AN 2 A] Z =& A &) - & it
BEEHFMEEGKG  BAAR ZAEB AR -
Hop Fung IndustriesZ & &0 B, %17 & K &100% 7T -
2 10,000 % 5 B EE0.01E T 2B » » Bl i
Hop Fung Industries BVI - Delight} & 7% 2= 5 4 %
57886 1,257 2857/ - IRIEFEH R EAE 57 -
FFARE S A MR AR T S 9 B4R A B B Hop Fung
Industries 7886 % & i E H0.01 £ T Ik 19 < 53
T & 488 5t A& Bl 4 4% & ¥ B Hop Fung Industries
1,257 R FIREE0.01E TR 2 fEw ©



HOP FUNG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
SEREERARLE

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EFERE

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

(continued)
(a) Shares (continued)

Notes: (continued)

3. Hop Fung Industries BVI is a holding company of Hop Fung
Industries and therefore an associated corporation of the
Company under the SFO. The entire issued share capital of
Hop Fung Industries BVI is US$100 divided into 10,000 shares
of US$0.01 each which is owned as to 1,181, 1,181, 3,819
and 3,819 shares by Mr. Hui Sum Kwok, Mr. Hui Sum Ping,
Fullwood and Goldspeed respectively. Under the SFO, each of
Mr. Hui Sum Kwok and Mr. Hui Sum Ping is interested and/or
deemed to be interested in an aggregate of 5,000 shares of
US$0.01 each in Hop Fung Industries BVI.

4. Hop Fung GM is a subsidiary of the Company and therefore
an associated corporation of the Company under the SFO. The
entire issued share capital of Hop Fung GM is HK$3,000,100
divided into 100 ordinary shares of HK$1 each and 3,000,000
non-voting deferred shares of HK$1 each. The 3,000,000 non-
voting deferred shares of HK$1 each in Hop Fung GM are
beneficially owned by Hop Fung Group (HK) Limited (“Hop
Fung Group HK") which is owned as to 78.86%, 12.57% and
8.57% by Hop Fung Holdings Limited (“Hop Fung Holdings
(BVI)"), Mr. Wong Wing Por and Mr. Hui Sum Tai respectively.

The issued share capital of Hop Fung Holdings (BVI) is owned
as to 50%, 11.81% and 38.19% by Mr. Hui Sum Kwok, Mr. Hui
Sum Ping and Goldspeed respectively. Under the SFO, each
of Mr. Hui Sum Kwok and Mr. Hui Sum Ping is deemed to
be interested in the 3,000,000 non-voting deferred shares of
HK$1 each in Hop Fung GM.

Pursuant to an option deed dated 19th August, 2003, Hop
Fung Group HK and its nominee granted to Hop Fung Group
Company Limited (“Hop Fung Group (BVI)"), a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, an option to purchase from them
such 3,000,000 non-voting deferred shares of HK$1 each in
Hop Fung GM. Accordingly, each of Mr. Hui Sum Kwok and
Mr. Hui Sum Ping is deemed to have a short position in the
underlying shares of the option granted under the option deed
pursuant to the SFO.

EERKRD  HBROREZzZES

()

(a) R 13 (&)
MaE - ()

3.

Hop Fung Industries BVIJ3Hop Fung IndustriesZ
TN E  ARIBEES R ERG - BARQA
2 #8Et A » Hop Fung Industries BVIZ 2 % & 3
T A /1003 7T+ 9 410,000 A% & A% E 15 0.01
EXZBRD DRIBETRELEE - TRELEE -
Fullwood }2 Goldspeed# & 1,181 + 1,181 » 3,819 &
381908 - MIBFFEF K ERD - FFARB K4+ R
HRTAEEHESR R SR A BHop Fung
Industries BVI& #£5,000 f% & &% 1 {E0.01 3= 7T % 19
2K o

ALURNPEIARRZHBRAR  AMREFES K
HEED - BARQGE 2B cAERNETE
202 31T IR 7K 3,000,100 7T 5 74 100 % & B%
T {E 178 7T 2 & 8 A% 13,000,000 % & B E E 178
JC 2 % 2 RE R AT A% » 3%23,000,000 8% & i @ B
1IBTZALAAERERECKRAELEE(F
BIERARI(AEEEEEDEEESE MA
@£ B & B A5 B BHop Fung Holdings Limited
(Hop Fung Holdings (BVI)]) ~ T &8 4& 4 & #F 7%
T EFEHT8.86% ~ 12.57% [ 8.57% °

Hop Fung Holdings (BVI).Z B 3% 1T B A& 2 Bl i 7F
HB % & - FFFRF % £ KGoldspeed# H50% -
11.81%12.38.19% ° IRIEFEH LB EEH - F R
BEERFRFEEVYERAEESLELH
3,000,000% & RX EE 175 T BT ERIETER - #

)
e

REAHAE-_ZTE=FNAt+tLBZERER
B ALYEEBEERERBEABARAZEZEAN
B A &Hop Fung Group Company Limited ([Hop
Fung Group BV ) HHEE R #E - LK EEE
3,000,000k BREEIE TGS ARAEKRER
EIER - At - BEBEFEHFRBEEGD - FHREL
ERFTRIPEEHERBERIRBBERERZEMN
BHEREY R 2EERG 2HKE -
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EFERE

HOP FUNG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
SEEEERARLDE

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

(continued)
(a) Shares (continued)

Notes: (continued)

5. Hop Fung FG is a subsidiary of the Company and therefore an
associated corporation of the Company under the SFO. The
entire issued share capital of Hop Fung FG is HK$3,000,100
divided into 100 ordinary shares of HK$1 each and 3,000,000
non-voting deferred shares of HK$1 each. The 3,000,000
non-voting deferred shares of HK$1 each in Hop Fung FG are
beneficially owned by Hop Fung Group HK. Under the SFO,
each of Mr. Hui Sum Kwok and Mr. Hui Sum Ping is deemed to
be interested in the 3,000,000 non-voting deferred shares of
HK$1 each in Hop Fung FG.

Pursuant to an option deed dated 19th August, 2003, Hop Fung
Group HK and its nominee granted to Hop Fung Group (BVI)
an option to purchase from them such 3,000,000 non-voting
deferred shares of HK$1 each in Hop Fung FG. Accordingly,
each of Mr. Hui Sum Kwok and Mr. Hui Sum Ping is deemed
to have a short position in the underlying shares of the option
granted under the option deed pursuant to the SFO.

6. Applewood Forest Limited (“Applewood”) is a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands. The entire issued
share capital of Applewood is US$1 comprising 1 share of
US$1 which is wholly owned by Pinecity and is ultimately
owned by HSBC in its capacity as the trustee of Hui & Wong
2004 Family Trust. Applewood is an associated corporation of
the Company under the SFO. Under the SFO, Mr. Hui Sum
Kwok is deemed to be interested in the 1 share of US$1 in
Applewood ultimately owned by HSBC in its capacity as the
trustee of Hui & Wong 2004 Family Trust.

7. Profit Luck Limited (“Profit”) is a company incorporated in
Hong Kong. The entire issued share capital of Profit is HK$100
comprising 100 shares of HK$1 each which is indirectly owned
by HSBC through its wholly owned subsidiary, Applewood.
Details of Applewood are set out in note 6 above.

ANNUAL REPORT 2009 —ZZhFFH

EERKRD  HBROREZzZES

()

(a) R 13 (&)
MaE - ()

5.

AEBEMOARRZHBAR  AEBEESFK
HEIEG - BALQ R Z HES cALEEMZE
#B 2 # 17 B AN 453,000,100 7T 0 9 A 100 /% & i%
EE 17 T 2 &8 & 3,000,000 0% &k EE 178
JL 2 I Z AR TR © 5%3,000,000 0% & A% 1 (E 1
Bzl HEREREERBELEEEER
EnlEl REBHFRBERD  FTHRETER
B #R TSR A AR B E /5 3,000,000 % = % E A 1
BLIZALYEREREREER X -

REBHAE-_ZTE=FNAt+tLhBZERER
B ALY EBEEERENRE ARHop Fung Group
(BVIH H B AR 42 - LA A1 1% 5 B B 3,000,000 % & ik
AEIBTZALREERERELTRK - At -
WEFHFRAERY  TRBELEERITRFERE
HEBEAEERBEEREZEMBELERES R
ZHEBRG 2HKE -

Applewood Forest Limited ([ Applewood]) Jb 74 %
BE LS FMAK T 2 QA - ApplewoodZ &
HEBTRAARIET 2R 1REEIEZETZR
5 o ZIE I 5 APinecity2 BB - R E
Bl HSBCLAHUI & Wong 2004 Family Trusts 5E A
2ENHA - IREFESF KEEED - Applewood
BAARZAEEEZE - RIBFHFRBAEEG - 3
X Bl 5E A4 AR A B FAHSBCLAHUI & Wong 2004
Family Trust® 7E A & 9 & £ % & Z Applewood 1
BEEIETRG 2 #EE -

MEERARTHED IREBEMALZ AR
Al o Mz 2HEEHITRAA100 T - 5 4100
BREREEIETZRG  BHSBCEAE = &M
B X &Applewood # # A ° ApplewoodZ & 15
B Ex ke o



HOP FUNG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
SEREERARLE

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EFERE

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

(continued)
(b) Share options

Details of the Directors’ and their associates’
interests in share options of the Company are set out
in the Section headed “Share Options” in this report.

Other than as disclosed above, none of the Directors
nor their associates had any interests or short positions
in any shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations as at 31st
December, 2009.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31st December, 2009, the register of substantial
shareholders maintained by the Company pursuant
to Section 336 of the SFO shows that the following
shareholders had notified the Company of relevant
interests and short positions in the issued share capital
of the Company:

EERNKRG HEROREZZER
(%)

(b) 5 A% 1

EERWEZHBEALIRAR 7%%%2
S S E B L S WERRAE | — 8 o

BREXBBEEN R_ZFTTALF+ A

_+ A EFRREIBEALIHERAK
B S B AT A AR B R B 2 A A D~ AR

ﬁ&%ﬁ$%ﬁ&ﬂ%ﬁ%mﬁ°

FERR

F_??ﬂ$+ A=+—8 XRARE
EHFNHEGRIIEBPHREFTZEIERRA

ﬁ%ﬁ ATBRREEAMEARRERFHEA

NADBITRAZ HEE R KIAR

Approximate

percentage of

Number of issued share capital

Name of shareholder Capacity issued shares held Note(s) HERTRA

RRE®B HE LS FECBRTRAHE (ks BABEDL

Hop Fung Industries Beneficial owner 252,000,000 1 52.18%

ExBEA

Hop Fung Industries BVI Iﬂterest of a controlled corporation 252,000,000 1,2 52.18%
REEEER

Fullwood Iﬂterest of controlled corporations 252,000,000 1,2,3 4 52.18%
REEEER

Pinecity Iﬂterest of controlled corporations 252,000,000 NN 52.18%
REEEER

Goldspeed Iﬂterest of controlled corporations 252,000,000 2, Sl 52.18%

REAE#R
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HOP FUNG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
SEEEERARLDE

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EFERE

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (continued) FERR#E)

Approximate

percentage of
Number of issued share capital

Name of shareholder Capacity issued shares held Note(s) HERTRA

RREB KA &% RECBRTROHE Mt BRBEI

Goldkeen Interest of controlled corporations 252,000,000 1,2,3,5 52.18%

REEEER
HSBC Trustee of discretionary trust/ 252,000,000 1,2,3,4,5 52.18%
interest of controlled corporations
PREAXTAN/XELERESR
Mr. Hui Sum Kwok Beneficial owner/founder of a 262,514,000 1,2,3,4,6 54.36%
TRE KA discretionary trust/interest of
controlled corporations/interest of
spouse
ERELA/ 2EERATAS
TEEREE/ EBER
Mr. Hui Sum Ping Beneficial owner/founder of a 259,894,000 1,2,3,5,7 53.82%
TIRTRAE discretionary trust/interest of
controlled corporations
EREHA/REERATAS
REEEER
Hallgain Management Interest of controlled corporations 57952,000 8 12%
Limited (“Hallgain”) XRLEES
Montpelier Asset Investment manager 29,744,000 - 6.16%
Management Limited REKE

Notes: B E -

1. The 252,000,000 shares are owned by Hop Fung Industries. 1. #%252,000,000% % 15 FHHop Fung Industries# &

2. The issued share capital of Hop Fung Industries is owned as to 2. Hop Fung Industries”? 2 % 77 B& 74 fhHop Fung
78.86%, 12.57% and 8.57% by Hop Fung Industries BVI, Delight Industries BVI ~ Delight& #F % & % %&£ » Bl # A&
and Mr. Hui Sum Tai respectively and Hop Fung Industries BVI is 78.86% * 12.57% K 8.57% -~ MiRIE & & K B & 1% -
deemed to be interested in the 252,000,000 shares under the Hop Fung Industries BVI¥ 1% & # B 7% 252,000,000 %
SFO. Betnz eam o

3. The issued share capital of Hop Fung Industries BVl is owned asto 3. Hop Fung Industries BVIZ & 3 7T f% 7~ % B i #F 7%
11.81%, 11.81%, 38.19% and 38.19% by Mr. Hui Sum Kwok, Mr. % & - FF & F L A& - Fullwood M Goldspeed# &
Hui Sum Ping, Fullwood and Goldspeed respectively. 11.81% * 11.81% ~ 38.19% £238.19% °
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (continued)

Notes: (continued)

4.

The entire issued share capital of Fullwood is indirectly held
by HSBC through its 100% controlled corporation, Pinecity in
its capacity as the trustee of Hui & Wong 2004 Family Trust, a
discretionary trust the founder of which is Mr. Hui Sum Kwok and
the discretionary objects of which include family members of Mr.
Hui Sum Kwok. Accordingly, each of Fullwood, Pinecity, HSBC and
Mr. Hui Sum Kwok is deemed to be interested in the 252,000,000
shares under the SFO.

The entire issued share capital of Goldspeed is indirectly held by
HSBC through its 100% controlled corporation, Goldkeen in its
capacity as the trustee of HSP 2004 Family Trust, a discretionary
trust the founder of which is Mr. Hui Sum Ping and the
discretionary objects of which include family members of Mr. Hui
Sum Ping. Accordingly, each of Goldspeed, Goldkeen, HSBC and
Mr. Hui Sum Ping is deemed to be interested in the 252,000,000
shares under the SFO.

Of 262,514,000 shares, Ms. Wong Mui is directly interested in
500,000 shares in the Company and is deemed to be interested in
262,014,000 shares under the SFO as she is the spouse of Mr. Hui
Sum Kwok, a director of the Company.

Ms. Jian JianYi is deemed to be interested in 259,894,000 shares
under the SFO as she is the spouse of Mr. Hui Sum Ping, a director
of the Company.

Hallgain is deemed to be interested in 57.952,000 shares. Hallgain
holds 30.97% of Kingboard Chemical Holdings Limited (“Kingboard
Chemical”) which is directly interested in 49,580,000 shares of the
Company. Jamplan (BVI) Limited (“Jamplan”) is a wholly owned
subsidiary of Kingboard Chemical. Jamplan wholly owns Kingboard
Investments Limited which is directly interested in 8,372,000
shares of the Company.

Other than as disclosed above, the Company had not
been notified of any other relevant interests or short
positions in the issued share capital of the Company as
at 31st December, 2009.

FERR@®)
GERNC)

4.

B £ X WEE N

Fullwoodz & &B B 8 17 % ZX AHSBCIE i H 100% 52 12
5% EPinecityLAHuUi & Wong 2004 Family Trusts 5t A 2
&5 MEFAE - Hui & Wong 2004 Family TrustJy — I8
2RET HEBVARTRELXLE : Ma2EETY
REEFRBEEECREKRKE - At - BREZFEHR
B %5 - Fullwood - Pinecity * HSBC K & #x [ 5 4=
= B W A% A %252,000,0000% 10 2 o

Goldspeed,z & B B % 17 i 7N FEHSBCE i3 H 100% %
22 5% EGoldkeen AHSP 2004 Family Trust” & 5 A &
DA - HSP 2004 Family Trust)h — B 2 # {55
HElVUABHTARE AL MEREAURRESRH
FRAEZREKE - At - RIBFEH LEBHEE -
Goldspeed * Goldkeen * HSBCK #F # F 5t 4£ & B #
5, 51 75 5%252,000,000 0% B {5 2 #E 25 ©

262,514,000 &t - BB X TEHEFBELAQA
500,000 B Dz - MR AR B ARRBIEEHH
BEEZEGB REZHFRBEGE 8L W
R A 262,014,000 B 1) < HE o

REFZFLBERD AR EBRELXLIARLIF
EEHRTELEZES BREXLIRARES
259,894,000 fx 7 < ##E 7 ©

Hallgain# 1% /& ¥ A 57952,000 % iX {7 = # #= -
Hallgaini s B 8t TEB AR A A (T&E /LI
230.97%HE % MEBILCIRAMEEZEFTAEARALZ
49,580,000 f& f& 17 = # % ° Jamplan (BVI) Limited
([Jamplan]) 3@ B T 2 2 &M E 2 A ° Jamplan
PEBRBREBREBRRAREERAEARAZ
8,372,000% f% 15 Z #E &= ©

R_ZEZEANF+ A

=t—H" $ Al BB EAMA LR
ARABDBEITERANTHEGHERERIORE -
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SEREEERARLQE

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SHARES

During the year ended 31st December, 2009, the
Company and its subsidiaries had not purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities
on the Stock Exchange.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed under the heading “Share Options”
above, at no time during the year was the Company,
any of its holding companies, fellow subsidiaries or
subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the
Directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the
Company or any other body corporate. In addition, save
as disclosed above, none of the Directors, their spouse
or children under the age of 18 were granted any right
to subscribe for the securities of the Company or had
exercised any such right during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Other than the transactions set out in note 31 to the
consolidated financial statements, no other contracts
of significance to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director of the
Company had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year.
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HOP FUNG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EFERE

%y

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31st December, 2009, the aggregate
amount of turnover attributable to the Group's five
largest customers accounted for less than 15% of the
Group's total turnover.

The aggregate amount of purchases attributable
to the Group’s five largest suppliers accounted for
approximately 55% of the Group's total purchases and
the purchase attributable to the Group's largest supplier
accounted for approximately 20% of the Group's total
purchases.

None of the Directors, their associates or any
shareholders (which to the knowledge of the Directors
own more than 5% of the Company's share capital) has
any interest in the Group's five largest suppliers.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Group did not enter into any
transactions with any connected persons.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under
the Company’s Articles of Association or the laws of
the Cayman Islands, which would oblige the Company
to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders.

DONATIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable donations
amounting to approximately HK$106,000.

FTEFEFRHER

REBEZ_ZETZNAF+_A=1+—HILFE "
AEBRAREFPZEEBEARMAERBRE
ERDO5%

AEBAAHERCBERAXGAKERE
5 18 5 4955% 7% % B i A G AR 7 2 BB
BAMMAEEBEAEN20% -

EEF HBZEALTINEZTAAEFALQ
BB ARE% A b 7 B R B S 2 AN 2 B i KR
B EA MR -

BEXS

R REMREREMREA LT IER
25

BRBERE

Aprl 2 HEERMARFES S AN L E
ERELBEE G REARRARIL
FIMRARRREHENK -

B

FRN - AREBIEHZEEZBNA106,000/%8 7T °
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company had complied with throughout the year
ended 31st December, 2009 the code provisions set out
in the Code on Corporate Governance Practices as set
out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules, except with the
following deviations:

Code Provision A.2.1

Code provision A.2.1 stipulates that the division of
responsibilities between the chairman and the chief
executive officer should be clearly established and
set out in writing.

There is no written terms on division of responsibilities
between the chairman and the chief executive officer.
The Directors consider that the responsibilities of the
chairman and chief executive officer respectively are
clear and distinctive and hence written terms thereof
are not necessary.

Code Provision A.4.2

Code provision A.4.2 stipulates that all Directors
appointed to fill a casual vacancy should be subject to
election by shareholders at the first general meeting
after their appointment.

In accordance with the Company's Articles of
Association, Directors appointed to fill a casual
vacancy are subject to re-election at next annual
general meeting.

Code Provision B.1.3

A major deviation from the code provision B.1.3 is
that the Remuneration Committee of the Company
review and make recommendations to the Directors
on the remuneration packages of the Executive
Directors only but not senior management.

Currently, the remuneration of senior management
is attended by the chairman and/or chief executive
officer of the Company.

ANNUAL REPORT 2009 —ZZhFFH

HOP FUNG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
SEREEERARLQE

TEER

HE-BEAFT-A=+—ALFE &
DE—EET ETRAIN 4% 0 R E AR
AT RIFTE 2 TR - AT 2 (BB 51

St B STA2.11&

o 57 AIMRSCA2 VIR E £ % BT AR 2 B
BHEREBEMSIE LASEIL -

N

)3 4 8 T 51 AT T B
BE EESRA  ERATRERS
2 197 B S A 7 T A
%7 BERE -

(=

N
=
=
{53

<F Al R S2A.4.21%

o TANGENAA2GREMA REMRR =
MEZEZEETARZERZBERAREX
EERRBRER -

e REARBMBERRMA - REMKER=
RMEZEZEETARTERRBERS
LtEE-

<F A % 32 B.1.3 %

s TR ZREBEQT RGBSR EFRTE
ArmFMEZESERATES(MIER
SREEEB)zHFM O RETRILAE
E (Surfc

e Bl "R EEEBZHFMAARRAEE
R/ SHATRABE R E -



HOP FUNG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EFEERE

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the directors, at
least 25% of the Company’s total issued share capital
was held by the public as at the date of this report.

AUDITOR

Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu has acted as auditor
of the Company since its incorporation.

A resolution will be submitted to the forthcoming annual
general meeting to re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Hui Sum Kwok
Chairman
22nd April, 2010
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B BEMEE

HOP FUNG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
SEEEERAERLQE

Deloitte.

b

/,
=z

TOTHE SHAREHOLDERS OF
HOP FUNG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Hop
Fung Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 52 to 119,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position
as at 31st December, 2009, and the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in
equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory notes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
and the true and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. This responsibility includes designing,
implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the
preparation and the true and fair presentation of the consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate
accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are
reasonable in the circumstances.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms
of engagement and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for
the contents of this report. We conducted our audit in accordance
with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether
the consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.
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HOP FUNG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
SEREEERARLQE

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B BEMEE

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and
true and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors of the Company, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31st
December, 2009 and of the Group's profit and cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

22nd April, 2010
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HOP FUNG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
BEKEEZERERLF

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
ReXEbax

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 3157 DECEMBER, 2009
E-EEAF LAt —ALEE

2009 2008
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
B =E FET FHB T
Revenue I %5 7 923,366 1,033,152
Cost of sales 5 & AR (727,762) (835,341)
Gross profit EF 195,604 197,811
Other income H e A 8 14,690 20,734
Selling and distribution costs HE R D HK A (36,234) (46,843)
Administrative expenses THHEX (61,902) (62,198)
Other expenses Hiaf X (39,052) (22,445)
Finance costs B 7 Bk 7K 9 (10,601) (11,869)
Changes in fair value of unsecured EIRFEREER
structured borrowing NFEZE 23 9,464 (7157)
Changes in fair value of derivative PTEESRITA
financial instruments ANEEZEH 23,452 (20,331)
Profit before taxation 75 /i A 95,421 47702
Income tax expense TS5 X 10 (11,656) (6,270)
Profit for the year F = F 1 83,765 41,432
Other comprehensive income FEHMEEmIE :
for the year:
Exchange differences arising from BMEFINER 2
translation of foreign operations M i, = %A (680) 4,181
Total comprehensive income for the year FEErmikFBesE 83,085 45,613
HK cents HK cents
Al Bl
Earnings per share BRAEF 14
— basic —HEK 17.35 8.58
— diluted — s 17.25 8.58
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HOP FUNG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
SEREEERARLQE

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
FaMBRRE

AT 3715T DECEMBER, 2009
(\=EENE+=A=+—A

2009 2008
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B = FET FA T

Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BENMERE 15 1,201,243 1,098,640
Prepaid lease payments on land use rights {5 F3 &£ 78 1 70 & 3518 16 34,361 34,854
1,235,604 1,133,494

Current assets RBEE
Inventories FE 17 154,862 65,631
Trade and other receivables B 5 & H b Yz A 18 163,550 115,419
Deposits and prepayments B& RIE K 8,194 10,5637
Prepaid lease payments on land use rights T RAEREMBEERE 16 809 809
Derivative financial instruments TEEmIA 19 262 706
Bank balances and cash WITEBRERE 20 174,438 254,795
502,115 447897
Current liabilities REBEE

Trade, bills and other payables B ERREMERMNSKIE 21 190,499 102,788
Taxation payable FES IR 19,410 18,995
Derivative financial instruments TEEmIA 19 1,271 24,547
Unsecured bank borrowings IR ITEE 22 271,161 282,974
Unsecured structured borrowing ERPEREER 23 7,750 7750
490,091 437054
Net current assets RBEEFE 12,024 10,843
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBER 1,247,628 1,144,337

Capital and reserves BAR#E
Share capital & A 24 48,292 48,292
Share premium and reserves B& 17 i B M 7 1 806,123 723,785
Total equity R 854,415 772,077

Non-current liabilities ERBEME
Unsecured bank borrowings EIKHEITEE 22 367,192 338,685
Unsecured structured borrowing EEREREE 23 8,111 25,325
Deferred taxation I FE i 08 25 17,910 8,250
393,213 372,260
1,247,628 1,144,337

The consolidated financial statements on pages 52 to 119 were
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on
22nd April, 2010 and are signed on its behalf by:

DIRECTOR # %

HUI SUM KWOK &F 7 Bl

=

DIRECTOR # %

HUI SUM PING =F % ¥
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HOP FUNG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
SEEEERAERLQE

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
ReEREDR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 37157 DECEMBER, 2009
E=FENFT=AS—ALEE

Share
Share Share Special Translation options  Retained
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve profits Total

Bx  BRHEE HHRE EXRG BERERRE RENA @it
HK$000 ~ HK§000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000
TEL  TET  TAT  TER  TETL  TERL  TER

(note)
(M3E)

At 1st January, 2008 RZZTN\E-A—H 48,292 425,382 (107444) 8,243 5,206 364,063 743,742
Profit for the year FEFE - - - - - 41,432 41,432
Exchange differences arising BEBIEBCEREER

from translation of foreign operations FEEMZANSEE

and total other comprehensive

income for the year - = = 4,181 = = 4,181
Total comprehensive income FEAKGREE

for the year - - - 4,181 - 41,432 45,613
Recognition of equity-settled BRNRELE

share-based payments KRB 3 ff 2 & i = = = = 3,586 - 3,586
Final dividend paid in respect 0f 2007~ BiR-EZR+ERHRE - = - - - (20864 (20864)
At 31st December, 2008 R-EE\F+-A=1+—H 48,292 425,382 (107444) 12,424 8,792 384,631 772,077
Profit for the year FEFE - - - = = 83,765 83,765
Exchange differences arising BERIEBCEREER

from translation of foreign operations FEEMZANSEE

and total other comprehensive

income for the year - - - (680) - - (680)
Total comprehensive income FEEAKELEE

for the year = = = (680) - 83,765 83,085
Recognition of equity-settled BRNRELE

share-based payments DB P = = = = 4,082 - 4,082
Interim dividend paid in respect 0f 2009 EE=EEhEHERE = = = = = (4,829) (4,829)
At 31st December, 2009 W-EEREF-B-+—8 48290 425382 (107444) 1744 1287 463567 854415
Note: Bt 5 -

Special reserve represents the difference between the costs of investments  ERIFEBEIE AR TARMB AT ZREKANEE HA YK AHE
in subsidiaries of the Company and the aggregate amount of the non-voting BARIERAPELEERMER AT ERERELERANIETE R
deferred share capital of Fung Kong Hop Fung Paper Ware Factory Limited and —ZEZ=F&£ESAMKEZHBARZBAEEY =5 o
Gong Ming Hop Fung Paper Ware Factory Limited and the nominal value of the

share capital of the subsidiaries acquired as a result of the group reorganisation

in 2003.
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HOP FUNG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
SEREEERARLQE

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
GCeHaRER

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 3157 DECEMBER, 2009
E=FENFT=AS—ALEE

2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTER FAT
Operating activities REEH
Profit before taxation 75 B A E 95,421 47,702
Adjustments for: RAEH LA T s
Finance costs B 7 A AR 10,601 11,869
Impairment losses (reversal of impairment loss) B 5 EWERIE 7R AR
on trade receivables (B EREEE) 3,553 (2,910)
(Reversal of) allowance for inventories (B[R 7FE#EE (13,851) 13,275
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment Mm% BERZETE 61,529 46,858
Release of prepaid lease payments on ¥ O] + b {5 PR
land use rights FEREERE 493 493
Interest income F B WA (1,186) (652)
Loss on disposal of property, plant HEME  BEK
and equipment HEEE 164 8
Share-based payment expense AR 2 2 2 H 4,082 3,586
Changes in fair value of derivative TESRBT A
financial instruments NEEZ S (23,452) 20,331
Changes in fair value of unsecured mIEHEREER
structured borrowing RNEBEZES (9,464) 7157
Operating cash flows before movements MEE LB A
in working capital LERERE 127,890 147,717
(Increase) decrease in inventories FECEEM) R D (75,380) 113,092
(Increase) decrease in trade and Z 5 & H fth fE Uk
other receivables FRIB (3800 ) k2 (51,684) 18,916
Decrease in deposits and prepayments Ee REMFR LD 2,343 9,279
Increase (decrease) in trade, bills and B ZEEREMES
other payables I A0 ORk ) 74,795 (11,857)
Settlement of derivative financial USTES R T EGEE B4
instruments, net 620 4,433
Cash generated from operations BEEEZES 78,584 281,580
Income tax paid BRSPS (1,586) (326)
Income tax refund REATE R 5 -
Net cash from operating activities RETHELECRESTEE 77,003 281,254
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HOP FUNG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
GCeHaRER

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 3757 DECEMBER, 2009

E=FENFT=AS—ALEE

SEEEERAERLQE

2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTER FAT
Investing activities RETE
Purchases of property, plant and equipment WEEY 2 - B &R (145,512) (290,571)
Interest received B4 F B 1,186 652
Proceeds on disposal of property, plant HEME BENK
and equipment P 1S 3E 660 396
Net cash used in investing activities REZBHFEAZRESFE (143,666) (289,523)
Financing activities REEE
New bank loans raised IBIRITEE 201,490 242,954
Bank advances drawn AR RITRR 378,163 407770
Increase (decrease) in trust receipt loans ZEUR s B FE a0 Gt 2>) 40,384 (100,333)
Repayment of bank loans BERITEE (179,441) (113,383)
Repayment of bank advances BEBRITER (423,902) (283,111)
Repayment of unsecured structured borrowing EBEEIEFLEEES (7,750) (7951)
Dividends paid B A% B (4,829) (20,864)
Interest paid B AT HE (17,403) (18,748)
Net cash (used in) from financing activities RMETB(ERAEERZ
BEFHE (13,288) 106,334
Net (decrease) increase in cash and REeRBLEEOAL)EM
cash equivalents HEE (79,951) 98,065
Cash and cash equivalents at 1st January N—BA—BREREELEHE 254,795 153,735
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes ExgeHsoE (406) 2,995
Cash and cash equivalents R+=-—A=+—HE=£
at 31st December RESZE
represented by bank balances and cash RITHB KRR S 174,438 254,795
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HOP FUNG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
SEREEERARLQE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FREMBREMEE

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2009
E=EENF LAt —AULEE

1. GENERAL

The Company is an exempted company with limited liability
incorporated in the Cayman Islands under the Companies
Law, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised)
of the Cayman lIslands and its shares are listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). Its
parent is Hop Fung Industries Limited, a company incorporated
in the British Virgin Islands and its ultimate parent is Hop Fung
Industries (Holdings) Limited, a company also incorporated in
the British Virgin Islands. The addresses of the registered office
and principal place of business of the Company are disclosed
under Corporate Information section of the annual report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HKD"), which is also the functional currency of
the Company.

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The
principal activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in
note 33.

. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs")

In the current year, the Group has applied, the following new
and revised Standards, Amendments and Interpretations (“new
and revised HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA").

HKAS 1 (Revised 2007) Presentation of Financial Statements

HKAS 23 (Revised 2007) Borrowing Costs

HKAS 32 & 1 Puttable Financial Instruments and
(Amendments) Obligations Arising on Liquidation

HKFRS 1 & HKAS 27 Cost of an Investment in
(Amendments) a Subsidiary, Jointly Controlled

Entity or Associate
HKFRS 2 (Amendment) Vesting Conditions and Cancellations

HKFRS 7 (Amendment) Improving Disclosures about
Financial Instruments
HKFRS 8 Operating Segments
HK(FRIC) - Int 9 &
HKAS 39
(Amendments)

Embedded Derivatives

1. —REHR
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VAERRERAR EBRORBEBHARS
FMAERAR([BR]) LT A2 ZHRAE A
R E B R & BY & 5 it 5 32 ZHop Fung Industries
Limited * ifl & 4% & 2 8 Bl & 5 38 88 B &2 B+ & Ak fift
X 32 ZHop Fung Industries (Holdings) Limited ° 7%
NAlZEMBBIRENE S L I 2t H N A
FRAFERIODA -

RAMBBRRANET(AETD 2 BITRA
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 HA KBTI cEEMBREEN(ER

MBERERER D ZER

RAFEAR AEBEERATIHBFESHOQ
S((ZRGREG])BEM 2T REERT 2L
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HOP FUNG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
SEEEERAERLQE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FREMBREMEE

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2009
HE=SEAFF=A=1— AU FE

. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSS") (continued)

HK(IFRIC) - Int 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes

HK(IFRIC) - Int 15 Agreements for the Construction

of Real Estate
HK(IFRIC) - Int 16 Hedges of a Net Investment in
a Foreign Operation

HK(IFRIC) - Int 18 Transfers of Assets from Customers

HKFRSs (Amendments) Improvements to HKFRSs issued in
2008, except for the amendment
to HKFRS 5 that is effective for
annual periods beginning on or
after 1st July, 2009

HKFRSs (Amendments) Improvements to HKFRSs issued
in 2009 in relation to the
amendment to paragraph 80
of HKAS 39

Except as described below, the adoption of the new and
revised HKFRSs has had no material effect on the consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the current or prior
accounting periods.

New and revised HKFRSs affecting presentation and disclosure
only

HKAS 1 (Revised 2007) Presentation of Financial Statements

HKAS 1 (Revised 2007) has introduced terminology changes
(including revised titles for the financial statements) and
changes in the format and content of the financial statements.

HKFRS 8 Operating Segments

HKFRS 8 is a disclosure standard that has resulted in a
redesignation of the Group's reportable segments (see note 7).
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HOP FUNG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
SEREEERARLQE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FREMBREMEE

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2009
HE=SENF+=A=+—AILEE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSS") (continued)

2 Ml BB 2 BERUBHRERA(TER
BHBEERA D z2ER @)

Improving Disclosure about Financial Instruments NEFHCH T A KEFE
(Amendments to HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures) (BBHBEHREERE7H L@ T A :
HEE(EETE))

ERVBREENETRZEFTHEREBART
EfEZERMTARAFEAEBEZHRERE R
BRFETME@®BEHR > AEEL EHREKR
BERERRLBES -

The amendments to HKFRS 7 expand the disclosures required
in relation to fair value measurements in respect of financial
instruments which are measured at fair value. The Group
has not provided comparative information for the expanded
disclosures in accordance with the transitional provision set
out in the amendments.

AEEYEEFHRA T RMEHRERZH
I MAEERTER (BRI AL RE -

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised
Standards, Amendments or Interpretations that have been

issued but are not yet effective.

HKFRSs (Amendments) Amendment to HKFRS 5 as part of & 75 B 15 3R 5 AE A BB I % 2R 55
Improvements to HKFRSs 2008 (1BETA) ZIBEIR - {EAZZT
SENFEERHB
R 2 U
K —F !
HKFRSs (Amendments) Improvements to HKFRSs 20092 BB HE £ —EENEFEYH
CHEN) R AR 2 B2
HKAS 24 (Revised) Related Party Disclosures® BB DT ERE245%  BEEALHEES
(&15835])
HKAS 27 (Revised) Consolidated and Separate Financial BB S ERFE275 SELRBUMERKX
Statements' (&185T)
HKAS 32 (Amendment) Classification of Right Issues* EBestERFE32% HRZHE
CHEN)
HKAS 39 (Amendment)  Eligible Hedged Items' BB GFTERE39E AERHHER
(BT 4A)
HKFRS 1 (Amendment) Additional Exemptions for 6 B 75 4 5 4R HRERBAE ZEIERRS
First-time Adopters? F15RUERTAN)
HKFRS 1 (Amendment) Limited Exemption from 5 B 7 3R 5 £ )| EV etk
Comparative HKFRS 7 Disclosures F158 (BRI AR) MELERNETRIEEZ
for First-time Adopters® tEE & R T E A R
RO
HKFRS 2 (Amendment) Group Cash-settled Share-based BB iS4 8| EBURSEE I
Payment Transactions® F2% (IBFT ) RN EAEZHZR S
HKFRS 3 (Revised) Business Combinations' BB B % R A 2 8| ey S
EREACSCT D)
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments’ 5 B 7S 3R & | SR T A7
FI5R
HK(IFRIC) — Int 14 Prepayments of a Minimum Funding EH(ERMBERE RIEREARBEE ZEM
(Amendment) Requirement® RRLZEg)-%E FKIBS
458 (IBFTAN)
HK(FRIC) - Int 17 Distributions of Non-cash Assets 5 (BB GHRE M#EE ADIKIER S
to Owners' REZET) BE
-RREE1TR
HK(IFRIC) = Int 19 Extinguishing Financial Liabilities 55 (RABEMBHRE LARERS T B84 01 7%
with Equity Instruments® “EREZEg)-2E B (&S
FE195%
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HOP FUNG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
SEEEERAERLQE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FREMBREMEE

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2009
EFENE A=t —ALFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSS") (continued)

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st July, 2009
Amendments that are effective for annual periods beginning on or after
Tst July, 2009 and 1st January, 2010, as appropriate

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January, 2010
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st February, 2010
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January, 2011
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st July, 2010
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January, 2013

N o g & w

The application of HKFRS 3 (Revised) may affect the Group's
accounting for business combinations for which the acquisition
date is on or after 1st January, 2010. HKAS 27 (Revised) will
affect the accounting treatment for changes in the Group's
ownership interest in a subsidiary.

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments introduces new requirements
for the classification and measurement of financial assets and
will be effective from 1st January, 2013, with earlier application
permitted. The Standard requires all recognised financial assets
that are within the scope of HKAS 39 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement to be measured at either
amortised cost or fair value. Specifically, debt investments
that (i) are held within a business model whose objective is to
collect the contractual cash flows and (ii) have contractual cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal outstanding are generally measured at amortised
cost. All other debt investments and equity investments are
measured at fair value. The application of HKFRS 9 might
affect the classification and measurement of the Group's
financial assets.

In addition, as part of Improvements to HKFRSs issued in
2009, HKAS 17 Leases has been amended in relation to
the classification of leasehold land. The amendments will
be effective from 1st January, 2010, with earlier application
permitted. Before the amendments to HKAS 17, leases were
required to classify leasehold land as operating leases and
presented as prepaid lease payments in the consolidated
statement of financial position. The amendments have
removed such a requirement. Instead, the amendments
require the classification of leasehold land to be based on the
general principles set out in HKAS 17, that are based on the
extent to which risks and rewards incidental to ownership of a
leased asset lie with the lessor or the lessee. The application
of the amendments to HKAS 17 might affect the classification
of the Group's leasehold land.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application
of the other new and revised Standards, Amendments
or Interpretations will have no material impact on the
consolidated financial statements.
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HOP FUNG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
SEREEERARLQE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FREMBREMEE

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2009
EEFNFT A= —HIUFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for certain financial
instruments, which are measured at fair values, as explained in
the accounting policies set out below.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange"”) and by
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company (its subsidiaries). Control is achieved where the
Company has the power to govern the financial and operating
policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during
the year are included in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income from the effective date of acquisition
and up to the effective date of disposal, as appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in
line with those used by other members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses
are eliminated on consolidation.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable
for goods sold and services provided in the normal course of
business, net of discounts and sales related taxes.

Revenue from sale of goods is recognised when the goods are
delivered and title has passed.

Service income is recognised when services are provided.

Interest income from a financial asset, excluding financial asset
at fair value through profit or loss, is accrued on a time basis,
by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective
interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts
the estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of
the financial asset to that asset's net carrying amount on initial
recognition.
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HOP FUNG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
SEEEERAERLQE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FREMBREMEE

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2009
EoFENE oA —ALEE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including land and buildings
held for use in the production or for administrative purposes,
other than construction in progress, are stated at cost less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, over their estimated useful lives and after taking into
account of their estimated residual value, using the straight-
line method.

Construction in progress includes property, plant and
equipment in the course of construction for production or for
its own use purposes. Construction in progress is carried at
cost less any recognised impairment loss. Construction in
progress is classified to the appropriate category of property,
plant and equipment when completed and ready for intended
use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as other
property assets, commences when the assets are ready for
their intended use.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or
loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the item) is included in profit or loss in the period in
which the item is derecognised.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is calculated using the first-in, first-out method.
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HOP FUNG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
SEREEERARLQE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FREMBREMEE

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2009
EEFNFT A= —HIUFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment losses on tangible assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible assets to determine whether
there is any indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the
extent of the impairment loss, if any. If the recoverable amount
of an asset is estimated to be less than its carrying amount,
the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of
its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised as income immediately.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
statement of financial position when a group entity becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial
assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value.
Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition
or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than
financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of
the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on
initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or
loss.

Financial assets

The Group's financial assets comprise financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL') and loans and
receivables. All regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date
basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales
of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the
time frame established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.
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HOP FUNG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
SEEEERAERLQE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FREMBREMEE

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2009
EEFNFT A= —HIUFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees paid or received that form an integral part
of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter period to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for
debt instruments other than those financial assets classified
as at FVTPL, of which interest income is included in changes in
fair value of derivative financial instruments.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at FVTPL comprise financial assets held for
trading.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

e it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling in
the near future; or

e itis a part of an identified portfolio of financial instruments
that the Group manages together and has a recent actual
pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

e it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a
hedging instrument.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value, with
changes in fair value arising from remeasurement recognised
directly in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.
The changes in fair value of derivative financial instruments
recognised in profit or loss include any dividend or interest
earned on the financial assets.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables
(including trade and other receivables, and bank balances and
cash) are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less any identified impairment losses (see accounting
policy on impairment loss on financial assets below).
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HOP FUNG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
SEREEERARLQE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FREMBREMEE

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2009
EEFNFT A= —HIUFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 3. FESHBEKRE)

Financial instruments (continued) eI AEE)

Financial assets (continued) HBEE(E)

Impairment of financial assets BB EERE

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for BUARAFEFABERZMBEEEIN REHRE
indicators of impairment at the end of each reporting period. HARTHERALERBEBRE - HWEREBIEET
Financial assets are impaired where there is objective evidence MG EEZ A ARBEREX A ERZEH
that, as a result of one or more events that occurred after the FEBEBBE Y — AR ZIEEHESZER - BB &
initial recognition of the financial asset, the estimated future EEZRE °

cash flows of the financial assets have been affected.

Objective evidence of impairment could include: ERN R R EeE

e significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; o IITANE HHIRE A KA E ; 5
or

e default or delinquency in interest or principal payments; or o MiKBEBHEIY MFBEHAS : 3k

e it becoming probable that the borrower will enter o ERABALEHAENETHFEAE -

bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade HREEBRNTHEENS  WE S EWFIE -
receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired FEREBIEHBRENEES NE % AR FTE
individually are subsequently assessed for impairment on BLRE - ERFBEBEHANZEREZESER
a collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for EE BTN GRKE 284 a Hl A Ay L N gk
a portfolio of receivables could include the Group’s past BB BEREREAPRSZ=1650H  JE U X IA #B /K 1500 B
experience of collecting payments, an increase in the number B BB R sk 8 b A AR O R B a8 M A Lt AT
of delayed payments in the portfolio past the credit period BB o

ranged from 5 to 150 days, other observable changes in
national or local economic conditions that correlate with
default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, an impairment HIZHMEXAARNY BEEMS BEEREE
loss is recognised in profit or loss when there is objective EETNARELEBERESZSRAER - BESHE
evidence that the asset is impaired, and is measured as the REEREBEEVEEENTRERFRIRA
difference between the asset’'s carrying amount and the e AKRBE S RERBENE=8ETE -

present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at
the original effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by HEEBAXEERLMEVHBEENERDE  EE

the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the SEWRZERGI B ZREWHENEmDERB
exception of trade receivables, where the carrying amount is BEERPRD HEEEGERFHNEREDEZFHNIE
reduced through the use of an allowance account. Changes in REARBER - BEEFEWRBEE AT KE » HiE
the carrying amount of the allowance account are recognised RBERERFAME BEMENESENER
in profit or loss. When a trade receivable is considered OB st ABEK o

uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are
credited to profit or loss.
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FREMBREMEE
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment loss was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the
asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed
what the amortised cost would have been had the impairment
not been recognised.

Financial liabilities and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a group
entity are classified according to the substance of the
contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its
liabilities. The Group's financial liabilities are generally classified
into financial liabilities at FVTPL and other financial liabilities.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
through the expected life of the financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis
other than those financial liability classified as at FVTPL, of
which the interest expense is included in changes in fair value
of derivative financial instruments.
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FREMBREMEE

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2009
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial liabilities and equity (continued)
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at FVTPL has two subcategories, including
financial liabilities held for trading and those designated at
FVTPL on initial recognition.

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if:

e it has been incurred principally for the purpose of
repurchasing in the near future; or

e itis a part of an identified portfolio of financial instruments
that the Group manages together and has a recent actual
pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

e it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a
hedging instrument.

A financial liability other than a financial liability held for trading
may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if
it forms part a contract containing one or more embedded
derivatives, and HKAS 39 permits the entire combined contract
(asset or liability) to be designated as at FVTPL. Accordingly,
the Group has designated its structured borrowing that
contains one or more embedded derivatives as a financial
liability at FVTPL.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value, with
changes in fair value arising on remeasurement recognised
directly in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities (including trade, bills and other
payables and unsecured bank borrowings) are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
method.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date
a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently
remeasured to their fair value at the end of each reporting
period. The resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss
immediately.

Embedded derivatives

Derivatives embedded in non-derivative host contracts
are treated as separate derivatives when their risks and
characteristics are not closely related to those of the host
contracts and the host contracts are not measured at fair value
with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive
cash flows from the assets expire or, the financial assets are
transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial assets.
On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between
the asset's carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that
had been recognised in other comprehensive income is
recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or
expires. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and
payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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SEREEERARLQE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FREMBREMEE

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2009
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Share-based payment transactions
Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

The fair value of services received determined by reference
to the fair value of share options granted at the grant date is
expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period, with
a corresponding increase in equity (share options reserve).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its
estimates of the number of options that are expected to
ultimately vest. The impact of the revision of the estimates
during the vesting period, if any, is recognised in profit or loss,
with a corresponding adjustment to share options reserve.

At the time when the share options are exercised, the
amount previously recognised in share options reserve will
be transferred to share premium. When the share options are
forfeited after the vesting date or are still not exercised at the
expiry date, the amount previously recognised in share options
reserve will continue to be held in share options reserve.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the leases transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.
Benefits received and receivable as an incentive to enter into
an operating lease are recognised as a reduction of rental
expense over the lease term on a straight-line basis.

Leasehold land and building

The land and building elements of a lease of land and
building are considered separately for the purpose of lease
classification, unless the lease payments cannot be allocated
reliably between the land and building elements, in which case,
the entire lease is generally treated as a finance lease and
accounted for as property, plant and equipment. To the extent
the allocation of the lease payments can be made reliably,
leasehold interests in land are accounted for as operating
leases and amortised over the lease term on a straight-line
basis.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income because it excludes
items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in
other years and it further excludes items that are never taxable
or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
base used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised
for all deductible temporary difference to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from the initial recognition of assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit
nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
except where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred
tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable
profits against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary
differences and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable
future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period when the liability
is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period. The measurement of deferred
tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that
would follow from the manner in which the Group expects,
at the end of the reporting period to recover or settle the
carrying amount of its assets and liabilities. Deferred tax is
recognised in profit or loss, except when it relates to items
that are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity, in which case the deferred tax is also recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in
the respective functional currency (i.e. the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates)
at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the
transactions. At the end of each reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group's foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) at the rate of exchange
prevailing at the end of the reporting period, and their income
and expenses are translated at the average exchange rates for
the year, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during
the period, in which case, the exchange rates prevailing at the
dates of transactions are used. Exchange differences arising,
if any, are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity (the translation reserve).
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of
those assets until such time as the assets are substantively
ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income earned
on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme/state-
managed retirement benefit schemes are charged as an
expense when employees have rendered service entitling
them to the contributions.

. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 3, the directors of the Company are required
to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and other
factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and
future periods.

The following are key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end
of the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.
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4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

(continued)

Fair values of derivative and other financial
instruments

Derivative financial instruments, including foreign exchange
forward contracts and interest rate swaps, are carried at the
end of the reporting period at fair value as disclosed in note
19. The best evidence of fair value is quoted prices in an active
market, where quoted prices are not available for a particular
financial instrument, the directors of the Company use
observable market inputs to estimate the fair value. The use of
methodologies, models and assumptions in pricing and valuing
these financial assets and liabilities is subjective and requires
varying degrees of judgement by management, which may
result in significantly different fair values and results.

For unsecured structured borrowing, details are set out in
notes 6(a) and 23.

Allowance for inventories

In determining the amount of allowance required for obsolete
and slow-moving inventories, the directors of the Company
would evaluate ageing analysis of inventories and compare the
carrying value of inventories to their respective net realisable
values based on latest market prices and current economic
conditions. A considerable amount of judgement is required
in determining such allowance. If conditions which have an
impact on the net realisable value of inventories deteriorate/
improve, additional allowances/reversal of allowances already
made may be required.

Allowance for trade receivables

When there is objective evidence of impairment loss,
the directors of the Company take into consideration the
estimation of future cash flows. The amount of the impairment
loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future
cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been
incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate computed at initial
recognition). Where the actual future cash flows are less than
expected, a material impairment loss may arise.

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

In applying the accounting policy on property, plant and
equipment with respect to depreciation, the directors of the
Company estimate the useful lives of various categories of
property, plant and equipment according to their experiences
over the usage of property, plant and equipment and also by
reference to the relevant industrial norm.
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5. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to shareholders through the optimisation
of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy
remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt, which
includes the borrowings disclosed in notes 22 and 23, net of
cash and cash equivalents, and equity attributable to owners of
the Company, comprising issued share capital and reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure
on a regular basis. As part of this review, the directors of the
Company consider the cost of capital and the risks associates
with each class of capital. Based on recommendations of the
directors of the Company, the Group will balance its overall
capital structure through the payment of dividends, new share
issues and share buy-backs as well as the issue of new debt or
the redemption of existing debt.
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. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS .E®MIAE
(a) Categories of financial instruments (a)€@m T EZEHA
2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHx FHT
Financial assets B %A E
Fair value through profit RAFEFABER(UARAFEE
or loss (FVTPL) FFABEZERK])
Derivative financial instruments mEEmMTA 262 706
Loans and receivables (including cash ERMERZEB(BEFERS R
and cash equivalents) ReEME) 337,988 370,214
338,250 370,920
Financial liabilities HEEE
Fair value through profit LAFEFABRR(ARFEE
or loss (FVTPL) sFABEED
Derivative financial instruments PTESRT A 1,271 24,547
Unsecured structured borrowing EMFEREE (R T
(see below) 15,861 33,075
Amortised cost XN 828,852 724,447
845,984 782,069
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(a) Categories of financial instruments (continued)

6. EMIA(#)
(a) &/ T B2 %E54)

Unsecured structured borrowing (note)

EEAEEEE (BE)

2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHERT FA& T
Difference between carrying amountand BREEEEIHI B # F(EE 2
outstanding principal amount to be paid REEACESHIERE
at maturity:
Carrying amount measured at fair value EATEFECREE 15,861 33,075
Amount payable at maturity FH A EN SR (15,564) (23,314)
297 9,761

Note:  The change in fair value was mainly due to change in market
risk factors. The fair value attributable to change in its credit
risk is considered immaterial.

(b)Financial risk management objectives and

policies

The Group's major financial instruments include trade
and other receivables, bank balances and cash, derivative
financial instruments, trade, bills and other payables,
unsecured bank borrowings and unsecured structured
borrowing. Details of the financial instruments are
disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated with
these financial instruments include market risk (foreign
currency risk and interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity
risk. The policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out
below. The directors of the Company manage and monitor
these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.

Market risk
Foreign currency risk

(i) Non-derivative foreign currency monetary assets and
monetary liabilities

A significant portion of the Group's sales is
denominated in Renminbi (“RMB") and HKD and
significant portion of the Group’s purchases is
denominated in RMB and United States dollars
("USD"). The Group's manufacturing operations are
located in the People’'s Republic of China (the “PRC").

MaE: AFEZERAMSRARARZHMEE M=
ERREFHRNTFEIFEIEM -

b BEREEBEEREE

AEBZTIEcRTABREESIREMER
RE - ROTEHBERS TEERMTAE B
5 ZEEREMENR  EBEFRTEER
BEREREBERE ZE2MIAZFBER
EERAMERN - ZEERTAPRZEARE
EmERRGOMNERREMNERR)  FER
RERBESER TXHIREZFER
ZBRR -ARAETEERERZEAR @ #
R B A B AU SR EGE B 5 B e

5 A R
SR
() FTENEEREERERAE

AEBRBOHBEEAARETARE DR
ABLIIE  MARBRBHEBEIUAR
BRET(TETDINE -AEBZ2HEX
BRRPEARKME((HE]) -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FREMBREME

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2009
EEFNFT A= —HIUFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6. €M IR #)
(b)Financial risk management objectives and (b)) HEEEEEEERBIEE)
policies (continued)
Market risk (continued) TEEE(E)
Foreign currency risk (continued) Sh SR B (48 )
(i) Non-derivative foreign currency monetary assets and (i) FETEINEEEEEREEKEGE(E)

monetary liabilities (continued)

Several subsidiaries of the Group have foreign REBNZEHBA _TJ//WI\M?&?"}ELE ,
currency sales and purchases, which expose the LAEBEERZIINERR - B FTRITAR -
Group to foreign currency risk. Certain bank balances, BES5RWZE B5 EBEREMENMNR
trade receivables, trade, bills and other payables and BEURERFRBROTEENAEESEEE Y
unsecured bank borrowings are denominated in the SNETDIME - R AR E B EHINER R HEITE
foreign currencies of the relevant group entities. The P WiBEBET M MR 19FF H 2 & T ANE =R
directors of the Company monitor foreign exchange HEXHNHHETER -

exposure and manage it by entering into certain foreign
exchange forward contracts as set out in note 19.

At the reporting date, the carrying amounts of the RFEH  AEBUEHEBREESAYN
Group’'s monetary assets and monetary liabilities BEEMUINZINETIENEKEE R G
denominated in currencies other than the respective BEZEmAEWT :
functional currencies of the relevant group entities are
as follows:
Assets Liabilities
BE =i
2009 2008 2009 2008
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FER T T FET FAT
RMB AR# 103,948 148,756 154,068 132,871
HKD T 3,436 25,675 418 1,175
usD e 18,377 14,908 16,684 63,298
Other H i 19 4 - _
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FREMBREME

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2009
E=EENF LAt —AULEE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)Financial risk management objectives and

6. EMIA(#)
(b BERBREEEBEREE L)

policies (continued)
Market risk (continued)
Foreign currency risk (continued)

Foreign currency sensitivity analysis

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a
5% increase and decrease in the functional currencies
of the relevant group entities against the relevant
foreign currencies. Sensitivity rate of 5% represents
the assessment of the directors of the Company of the
reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rates.
The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign
currency denominated monetary items and adjusts their
translation at the year end for a 5% change in foreign
currency rates. In the opinion of the directors of the
Company, the foreign currency exposure in relation to the
HKD and USD exchange rate fluctuation is not significant
as HKD is pegged to USD. For this reason, the sensitivity
analysis below does not reflect this.

The sensitivity analysis below shows the impact relates to
monetary assets or liabilities that are denominated in RMB
or HKD against the functional currencies of relevant group
entities, HKD or RMB respectively.

In relation to monetary assets, where the functional
currency of the relevant group entity strengthens 5%
against the currency in which the assets are denominated,
there would be a decrease in profit for the year. However,
in relation to monetary liabilities, where the functional
currency of the relevant group entity strengthens
5% against the currency in which the liabilities are
denominated, there would be an increase in profit for the
year.

mEmE (%)
MR ()
SNEBURE DA

TRAJNASEHAFAESEERB YRS
RAERINETERZESS L BURE » AR
b BANREEHERM LS EEH 2 FE -
HEEIMERRUIINEAEZHRFERE
BIRA - ANFRBBRELBURREEZ5%

- BRETRETE XK 2SR RK
FEHM -BUME  TXZEBREDFTALTR
BRI IE R ©

TXZHEEDTBTRIAARE BT E
ZEBKEESRABELHAABASEEERIE
ERBELTIARBZEE -

IEREEMS  HEMSEERBZNER
BERBEEMRMNFEZIERTESS - AIFE
MEBERD - A MEREENS - W48
MEBER 2D ERRBERMRRFTEZ
E¥E6%  MFEFNBHSIZM -

RMB Impact HKD Impact
AR¥ZEE BTZEE
2009 2008 2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHT T FET FHT
Increase (decrease) T 5 3% hn (Rt 4>)
in profit 2,506 (794) (151) (1,225)

A 5% weakening of the functional currency would have an
equal but opposite impact on the profit for the year.

Dt EKEES% AFEFEERE
MERARZTZE -

|48 R 8k
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FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2009
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)
Foreign currency risk (continued)

Foreign currency sensitivity analysis (continued)

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the
sensitivity analysis is unrepresentative of the inherent
foreign exchange risk as the year end exposure does not
reflect the exposure during the year.

(i) Foreign exchange forward contracts

During the year, the Group has entered into several
foreign exchange forward contracts with banks, details
are disclosed in note 19. These derivatives are not
accounted for under hedge accounting. The Group's
foreign exchange forward contracts exposed the Group
to foreign currency risk.

The directors of the Company consider that the
exposure of HKD against USD is limited as HKD is
pegged to USD.

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined
based on the exposure to the Group's forward
exchange rate risk for contracts of RMB against USD at
the reporting date.

If the forward exchange rate of RMB against USD had
been 5% higher/lower while all other input variables
of the valuation models were held constant, the
Group's profit for the year would decrease/increase by
HK$775,000/HK$775,000 respectively (2008: decrease/
increase by HK$5,400,000/HK$2,893,000).

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the
above sensitivity analysis is unrepresentative of the
inherent foreign currency exposure. For the year ended
31st December, 2008, an unexpected large weakening
in RMB against USD might result in the Group suffering
further losses. Details of the terms of the leveraged
foreign exchange forward contracts are set out in Note
19.
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6. EMIA(#)
(b BRBEEEERKEK#)

mEmE (%)
SR ()
SNEBRE DT (B

ARREZRR HRERERIL TR
FAZER #EREIMETRKRKREAZ
SNER R

(i) SMEZEBA X

FA-AEECDERITAZZEINERD
AR FBRENRME19 - ZFTETA
WRAEHEEHEAR - NEEZIHMNER
HAan<cASBEHEBEINERR -

ARABEZERR  ARBTEITHE
BMALTABETZELARRBR -

TXZBRESTHREBASRERKER
RARBHETAOMAR 2 ZPEXE

MARB ST ZRBER EH TR
5% @ MEERAANZEEMES8ERET
o AAREERFRZEFED B,
# HN775,0005 7T, 775,000 7T ( — BE N\
£ F 1 505,400,000 7T, 2,893,000
BIT) ©

RAATEERE  LHBREDSTIL TR
XEBEIERR BHE_ZTNF+_A
=T HLEFE ARBHETZEERN
BOKERE  AEERAEEHE— SR
REE - -BMEIERBEOZERFBH
AT EE19 ©
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FREMBREMEE

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2009
E=EENF ATt —AULEE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)Financial risk management objectives and

6. EMIA(#)
(b BERBREEEBEREE L)

policies (continued)
Market risk (continued)
Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk
in relation to variable-rate bank borrowings (see note
22 for details of these borrowings), bank balances and
deposits. The directors consider that the interest rate risk
on bank balances and deposits are minimal, accordingly,
no sensitivity analysis is performed. The directors of the
Company monitor the interest rate exposure and manage it
by entering into certain interest rate swaps contracts (see
note 19 for details of these interest rate swaps contracts).

In respect of the structured borrowing, the repayment
amounts are based on the spread rates between 10-year
US$-International Swaps and Derivatives Association
("ISDA")-Swap Rate and 2-year US$-ISDA-Swap Rate, the
entire borrowing is designated as fair value through profit
or loss as disclosed in note 23.

The Group’s exposures to interest rates on financial
liabilities are detailed in the liquidity risk section of this
note. The Group cash flow interest rate risk is mainly
concentrated on the fluctuation of HIBOR, and prevailing
interest rates offered by the People's Bank of China arising
from the Group's borrowings denominated in HKD and
RMB respectively.

Interest rate sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis has been determined based on the
exposure to interest rates for non-derivatives instruments.
The analysis is prepared assuming the amount of financial
instruments outstanding at the end of the reporting
period were outstanding for the whole year. Increase or
decrease in a b0 basis point represents the assessment of
the directors of the Company of the reasonably possible
change in interest rates. For the Group's exposure to
interest rates on its variable-rate bank borrowings, if
interest rates had been 50 basis points higher/lower and
all other variables were held constant, the Group's post-
tax profit for the year ended 31st December, 2009 would
decrease/increase by HK$3,192,000 (2008: decrease/
increase by HK$3,108,000).

mEmE (%)
T /2 B

AREARZAZERTERRSEEZFE
HAME22)  ROTEBRRERXBAZIRESR
ENEREAR  -EFERR RITEHBRERZH
KEBREBE - Bt - BAETHRESN - A
AAEEHMEEBRETEE  WEBFTY
ETHMXRHAO(ZENRIEHEOFEH
RHTEE19) B EETER o

RERBEEMSs EESLBEDHIRENTI0F
ET-EBEREEHRERRTAEAREIAERGS
([ISDA ) — 4= #3 FI| =& F7 2 4 3 JT-ISDA-F= B 7
R BEAE - EREEBETEUNAFETA
BEX o EBRME2BWE -

AEEAZB A G2 F X E B F N A H
dIRBECER| & AKENRERE
MERBEEBEFRBBRTAXERELAE
SENBETRARBIENEBEMELE ZF
BARBITHARIVITH XK -

TR GRRE D

UNTHREESIMIBBEETETEMAT Z
MEEBMAEL DT HBRERFEHR
REENEMIELEINBEFEREE -
b7 1 AN SO R B =S = NN = <
REABEEH TG AEEMNZEEERITEE
¥ R R @B - anF =38 hn 5 B0 fE E 2
MATEEMESREFITE  BMAEEHZE
ZENFF+_A=Z+—HLEFENBEFH
1 &R 4,18 03,192,000 T(ZEE )\ F :
/18 403,108,0005% 7T ) °
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)Financial risk management objectives and

6. EMIA(#)
(b BERBREEEBEREE L)

policies (continued)
Market risk (continued)
Interest rate risk (continued)

Interest rate sensitivity analysis (continued)

For structured borrowing, the change in number of
business days in the period for which Spread Rate <-0.05%
represents management's assessment of the reasonably
possible change in interest rates. If 8 (2008: 8) more
business days in the period for which Spread Rate <-0.05%
and all other variables were held constant, the Group's
post-tax profit for the year ended 31st December, 2009
would decrease by approximately HK$2,374,000 (2008:
decrease by HK$57.000).

The Group’s sensitivity to interest rates has increased
during the current year mainly due to the increase in
variable rate debt instruments.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the
sensitivity analysis is unrepresentative of the interest rate
risk as the year end exposure does not reflect the exposure
during the year.

Credit risk

As at 31st December, 2009, the Group's maximum
exposure to credit risk which will cause a financial loss to
the Group due to failure to discharge an obligation by the
counterparties is arising from the carrying amount of the
respective recognised financial assets as stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the directors of
the Company have delegated a team responsible for
determination of credit limits, credit approvals and other
monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action is
taken to recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group
reviews the recoverable amount of each individual trade
debt at the end of the reporting period to ensure that
adequate impairment losses are made for irrecoverable
amounts. In this regard, the directors of the Company
consider that the Group's credit risk is significantly
reduced.
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FIF 2 bz ()
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)Financial risk management objectives and

6. EMIA(#)
(b BERBREEEBEREE L)

policies (continued)
Credit risk (continued)

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit ratings assigned
by international credit-rating agencies.

Other than concentration of credit risk on liquid funds
which are deposited with several banks with high credit
ratings, the Group does not have significant concentration
of credit risk. Trade receivables consist of a large number
of customers, spread across diverse industries and
geographical areas.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by the directors of the Company to finance the
Group's operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations
in cash flows. The directors of the Company monitor the
utilisation of bank borrowings and ensure compliance with
loan covenants.

The Group relies on bank borrowings as a significant
source of liquidity. As at 31st December, 2009, the Group
has available undrawn borrowing facilities of approximately
HK$241,264,000 (2008: HK$249,310,000). The Group
monitors its current and expected liquidity requirements
regularly and ensuring sufficient liquid cash and adequate
committed lines of funding from reputable financial
institutions to meet the Group's liquidity requirements in
the short and long term.

The following table details the Group’'s remaining
contractual maturity for its financial liabilities. For non-
derivative financial liabilities, the table has been drawn
up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial
liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Group
can be required to pay. The table includes both interest and
principal cash flows.

For derivative instruments that settle on a net basis,
undiscounted net cash (inflows)/ outflows are presented.

EEmE(E)

HRXSEHAEBREEIERBIAR
EEFEZRIT  WRBDESZEERBRER -

BRERDESFHRESEETFRZARR
TR R zEERBREPESIN  AEEL
BEAEFTZEERR -BHBUKEL R
REEF UBEBARTEN MR

B E 2 /mE
EEBRDESAREK  AEEEZERER
ARBEFRRACZIAES KRS FEKFE

HtMaASELERHESRBAERSRE
BRBZHEB - ARBDEFEZERITEEZY
RAER  LHERTEERZOZHRE -

REBKBROTBEEEAERDESZEE
KR - RZZEZAE+_A=+—H  ~£H
BARIRIAE E R & 4241,264,0008 L (=&
= J\4F : 249,310,000/ T) - AL B & FHE
REEAMRERRDEST K BREES
RREZADESRREERITZSBEEE
BRAZAFERBUBRBNAEBE ZEH R
EHRESHEETF K o

TERFINAKEZHBABZRHEOINH
HIR - BLEOTAMBREMS - AR NVEAK
BAwERNRAONKERNHANTBEER
FRAEREINR -RPFBEMNERAER

s =
ﬁ/}lbi ©

RRFERELE2TETAMS > W
AFBRFREORA)/RE °
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

6. EMIA#)
(b) B EAREEERRERE )

Liquidity risk (continued) FEBE 2 EE(E)

Liquidity and interest risk tables MEBE S MF B R K

Weighted On Carrying
average demand or Total amount at
effective less than undiscounted 31.12.2009
interest rate 1month 3 months cashflows R-BENE
ik £37] REXT 1-3 months to 1year 1-2 years 25 years *HBRS t-R=1-H
ERA=R -fBAR -E=fif Zz@RZ-%& -EmE MEELE HEEE BEE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T TiEn TiEn TEx TiEn T TER
2009 ZEENE
Non-derivative financial FTERKER
liabilities
Trade, bills and other payables 25~ ZH R At 308 - 190499 - - - - 190499 190,499
Variable rate unsecured bank ~ EERFTLEIHAR
borrowings 34 96,459 101,348 131,001 10,055 25917 674,780 £38,353
Unsecured structured BEREEREE
borrowing 20 - 3,875 3913 141 - 15,535 15,861
286,958 105,223 134914 117802 235917 880,814 844113
Derivatives settled net REEEENETR
Interest rate swaps fikgch 6 56 6 - - 68 65
Foreign exchange forward HNERHEY
contracts 305 589 1,022 151 - 2,067 1,206
kil 645 1,028 151 - 2,135 121
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6.

(b)Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

eMIA®)
bHEEREEEERKRE (&)

mEBEZmE(E
MEBES RN BRBRE(E)

Liquidity risk (continued)

Liquidity and interest risk tables (continued)

Weighted On Carrying
average demand or Total amount at
effective less than undiscounted 3112.2008
interest rate 1 month 3 months cashflows R-BENE
MEEH RELE 1-3 months to 1 year 12 years 25 years *hERS +-B=t-H
(i —f@AR -Z2=fif =fEAZ-% -EWE MEERE REME RHE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK§'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

THL TR AL THL TR TEL THL

2008 “EENE
Non-derivative financial FisHBaE
liabilities
Trade, bils and other payables 2% - TEREMEMNTE - 102,788 - - - - 102,788 102,788
Variable rate unsecured bank  EERRITEEF BT X
borrowings 21 56,403 127885 119,954 229,750 116,909 650,901 621,659
Unsecured structured BERERRE
borrowing 48 - 5171 5771 11,554 11,554 34,662 33,075
169,191 133,662 125,731 241,304 128,463 788,351 757522
Derivatives settled net REEEENEIR
Interest rate swaps GlESer 27 86 21 130 - 524 418
Foreign exchange forward MERBAH(HE)
contracts (note) 2,397 4733 20,024 284 - 27438 24,129
2,424 4819 20,306 414 - 27962 24,547
Note:  The above cash flows were estimated based on yield curves of sk : EFRBEERNIEBEAEESTILETEAR

market HK$ to US$ and RMB to US$ exchange rates prevailing
at the reporting date. Such yield curves showed market HK$
to US$ and RMB to US$ exchange rates over a range of
maturity dates. Estimated cash flows in RMB to US$ were
then translated to HK$ at spot rates prevailing at the reporting
date for presentation purpose. The above cash flows might not
reflect the actual outcomes. A significantly weakening in RMB

BHERTZERMERR AT A - &K
HEARRETHEETRARELZTR TR
A CER ARBEXIZEHREERE
BREBEREHER FIARERBT  UHE
2B ERBRERAVRREELER - AR
BHXTZERZREE<AKRERERAE
HREMBZARYE - BANESDOZ GERF

against US$ would result in the Group's purchasing much more 5 Bt RAHTEE19 ©
RMB than what the Group needs due to the leverage. Details
of the terms of the leveraged foreign exchange contracts are
set out in Note 19.
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6. eI B
(¢) Fair value (c) 2 &

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities are MBEEMMBEABEZATESEENT :

determined as follows:

e the fair values of derivative financial instruments (i.e. e MTESRMIAEZAFTEGBIIERHRED
foreign exchange forward contracts and interest rate EAEEH) R BEEMESREETI A
swaps) provided by the relevant banks, are determined HERTIRE -REBEEMSE  A5EH
based on observable market inputs. For structured FAEAARITIREZGEGBTAFE -5
borrowing, the fair value is estimated with reference to AEEEE ZFBERNWE6E@ &3 &

the valuation provided by the relevant bank and details
are set out in notes 6(a) and 23; and

e the fair value of other financial assets and financial s HMHBEERVKAB(TBREITLEL
liabilities (excluding derivative instruments) are B)ZAFEDIRBELBEMZUFEAR
determined in accordance with generally accepted EREIMAERZEEEAMETE -

pricing models based on discounted cash flow analysis.

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of EERBUEREVMBERRABHKAARZ
financial assets and financial liabilities recorded at WHEERMBBEZ REABEREQAFEES °

amortised cost in the consolidated financial statements
approximate their fair values.

Financial instruments that are measured subsequent to UL UANRARFERERETFTEZEHTAERAER
initial recognition at fair value, based on the degree to FEABEREESA—ZE=M -

which the fair value is observable, were grouped into

Levels 1 to 3.

ANNUAL REPORT 2009 —ZZhFF#H



HOP FUNG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
BEKEEZRERLF

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FREMBREME

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2009
HE=SEAFF=A=1— AU FE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6. eI B
(¢) Fair value (continued) (c) AFEE)
Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived from F—HBAFEAENFERATE2HERZEESK
quoted prices (unadjusted) in active market for identical BERERMBZHRE(CKREAE) S - F
assets or liabilities. Level 2 fair value measurements —RAFEAENGE R BIEZREI
are those derived from inputs other than quoted prices BEEEXEENEZEIBR)NH[EEIEE
included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset BERERZBESH F=FAFETE
or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. DEETHEREFL  E+FEETIERE
derived from prices). Level 3 fair value measurements are AERMEEBR(EEBRE 2O ASB) &
those derived from valuation techniques that include inputs E B EEE -

for the asset or liability that are not based on observable
market data (unobservable inputs).

2009
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
B -~ a1 F=#K @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FTHET FET FHExT
Financial assets AFEEA
at FVTPL BaEkZ
BHREE
Derivative financial PTEemIA
instruments - 262 - 262
Financial liabilities BAFERA
at FVTPL BaEkZ
g =R
Derivative financial PTEemIA
instruments - 1,271 - 1,271
Unsecured structured X EREE
borrowing - - 15,861 15,861
Total 48 =t - 1,271 15,861 17,132
There were no transfers between Level 1 and 2 nor RAEE %—%E@Eﬁi%:%&Z%ﬁEﬁE% i
transfers into or out of Level 3 in current year. BE=RMNMEEAREL -
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FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2009
FoEFNFF A= —HULFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6. eI B
(c) Fair value (continued) (c) AFEEE)
Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements of BB EEE=R L FEFTEZHEK
financial liability

2009
HK$’000
FE R
Unsecured structured borrowing EIRHEEES
At 1st January n—H—H 33,075
Repayment EBER (7,750)
Changes in fair value recognised in R B2 & ER 2 A T E & &
profit or loss (9,464)
At 31st December R+=—A=+—8 15,861
7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 7 WERABES
Revenue g 2=
Revenue represents the gross proceeds received and WEEEANBEEERTBFTHNRIEEHBHRIER
receivable on the sale of goods during the year, net of B EEWFTERIBEEE -
discounts and sales related tax.
Segment information o E R
The Group has adopted HKFRS 8 Operating Segments with NREBEHMEBE-_ZEZNE—A—BRBRERZE
effect from 1st January, 2009. HKFRS 8 is a disclosure %E\M‘%i&%ﬁ,ﬁ\l]%Sﬁﬁsﬁ%ﬁaﬁ % 7B B 7S iR
standard that requires operating segments to be identified on KR EQR A —HIBEE Ellj TERBENEE
the basis of internal reports about components of the Group AR ER D 2 N 2P R A HE R é‘%%-ﬁ[ﬁ A W Ep
that are regularly reviewed by the chief operating decision HERFELE ,9&%%7,\% D ELE R T o M AR
maker for the purpose of allocating resources to segments HFEREMEHERN - Bk BEFEI(FA St
and assessing their performance. In contrast, the predecessor EHI|ZE 14*5}5 S e L) B E AR K KOk
Standard (HKAS 14 Segment Reporting) required an entity to HAERME D S‘B(%i‘%&ﬁﬂlﬁ) cBE  ANEEE
identify two sets of segments (business and geographical), ﬁE“ﬁ—ﬂ A ARFEZEREEREE - B
using a risks and returns approach. In the past, the Group o WY FERESLME D - At 0 RNER
only had one segment, namely manufacturing and sales of MBE LR BRELERFIHR 2B AEEFE 2 &R
paperware products in the PRC. Accordingly, no business and DEPZERE B o

geographical segments were presented. As a result, following
the adoption of HKFRS 8, the identification of the Group's
operating segments has changed.
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HOP FUNG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
SEKEEERARLE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FREMBREMEE

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2009
EEFNFT A= —HIUFE

7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(continued)
Segment information (continued)

The Group's operations are mainly organised under the
segments of manufacture and sale of:

e Containerboard — corrugating medium and linerboard

e Corrugated packaging — corrugated paper boards and
carton boxes

Information regarding the above segments is reported below.
Amounts reported from the prior year have been restated to

7 WERIHER 2

DEER(#)
REBEBIEMATEERHEE D #BAMK:

o A — R TH R4S
s EBEBEK —RBEREREEM

ﬁEEJ:L“*EZéEHE%’zZZDT c RETEBUK
WERMNESRZRTE  EFE2RZSHECRET -

87

conform with the requirements of HKFRS 8.

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results AT AREEDEE D 2 ANEBIWE RELE DT :

by operating segment:
Segment revenues and results DS R EE

For the year ended 31st December, 2009 BE _ZETZNF+-_A=1+—BItFE

Corrugated
Containerboard Packaging Eliminations Consolidated
56 AR 4 EEad# Fag| wa
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THET FET FET
REVENUE U =
External sales NG E 127,406 795,960 - 923,366
Inter-segment sales o EPEHE S 476,187 858 (477,045) -
Total 48 =t 603,593 796,818 (477,045) 923,366
RESULT E4
Segment profit 2= DI 29,819 43,287 - 73,106
Finance costs B 7 B 2N (10,601)

Changes in fair value of XM EBEE
unsecured structured NFE &
borrowing 0,464

Changes in fair value TEEBT A

of derivative financial NFEEZEH

instruments 23,452
Profit before taxation 6 A 7 95,421
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HOP FUNG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
SEEEERARLE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FREMBREME

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2009
EoFENE oA —ALEE

7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(continued)
Segment information (continued)
Segment revenues and results (continued)

For the year ended 31st December, 2008

7 WERSHER &)

7 ERE KL ()
7B W & R A )
HE-PEN\F+-A=t+—ALEE

Corrugated
Containerboard Packaging Eliminations Consolidated
AR AR TS B2 ¥ 85 Fode)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FA&T AT FAT FA& T
REVENUE Uz
External sales HONEE 43,079 990,073 - 1,033,152
Inter-segment sales 2 BB 8 & 513,368 - (513,368) -
Total 48 = 556,447 990,073 (513,368) 1,033,152
RESULT £
Segment profit 5 3B A1 17,229 69,830 - 87059
Finance costs B 75 B AR (11,869)
Changes in fair value of XA BEE
unsecured structured A F{H 7 & &)
borrowing (7157)
Changes in fair value TESRmIA
of derivative financial RNEEZEE)
instruments (20,331)
Profit before taxation i A1 A1) E 47,702

The accounting policies adopted in preparing the operating
segment information are the same as the Group’s accounting
policies described in note 3.

Segment profit represents the profit earned by each segment
without allocation of finance costs, changes in fair value of
unsecured structured borrowing and changes in fair value of
derivative financial instruments. This is the measure reported
to the chief operating decision maker for the purposes of
resources allocation and performance assessment.

Inter-segment sales are charged at prevailing market rates.
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HOP FUNG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
BEKEEZRERLF

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FREMBREME

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2009
HE-SEAFI=A=+—ALEE

7 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 7 WHER2ER (&)

(continued)
Other segment information H fth 5 % & ¥
For the year ended 31st December, 2009 BE_ZEZAF+-_A=+—HBILHFE
Amounts included in the measure of segment profit: HESITANEEaE S
Corrugated
Containerboard Packaging Total
5 1R 48 RiEa# st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FERT FET FE R
Interest income F B WA 906 280 1,186
Amortisation of prepaid T8 {5 78 & )8 # 8
lease payments 232 261 493
Depreciation e 37,370 24,159 61,529
For the year ended 31st December, 2008 HE_ZZN\GF+-_A=+—HLEFE
Amounts included in the measure of segment profit: SESHANEREBRE S5
Corrugated
Containerboard Packaging Total
AR AR FLA%S B 3 #Et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
A& T FAT FAT
Interest income B U A 196 456 652
Amortisation of prepaid TR & RIB R
lease payments 232 261 493
Depreciation e 20,688 26,170 46,858
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HOP FUNG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
SEEEERARLE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FREMBREMEE

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2009
HE=SEAFF=A=1— AU FE

7 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 7 W& E2EER(2)

(continued)
Geographical information i EE R
The following table set out information about (i) the Group's TRIINEBAONVEAEBZREFERE 5 25
revenue from external customers by location of customers and KEEPFWR LI EBIREEREMEEZ D 2 I
(i) the Group’s non-current assets by location of assets: TREEEZEE
Revenue from
external customers Non-current assets
SPREF W= ERBEE
2009 2008 2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
FHER FAT FTER T T
PRC 2] 923,366 1,033,152 1,229,744 1,127051
Others H A - - 5,860 6,443
923,366 1,033,152 1,235,604 1,133,494
Segment assets and liabilities THEERERE
The measure of the segment reporting of the Group reported FTEHRHTFELERREEERIERRBIGHZ
to the chief operating decision maker for the purpose of RzAREESBHREFLTBEAATMNEEREE -
resources allocation and performance assessment does not At - WEZIHHEERERE -
include any assets and liabilities. Accordingly, no segment
assets and liabilities are presented.
8. OTHER INCOME 8. HAttlt A
2009 2008
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Other income includes: HE A B
Exchange gain, net b 5 Uy 7 0F (B - 3,317
Interest income from bank balances HRIT A5 R A B U A 1,186 652
Scrap sales BErmiHE 1,334 5,202
Service income P 75 e A 10,780 10,863
Sundry income HMEIF U A 1,390 700
14,690 20,734
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HOP FUNG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
SEKEEERARLE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FREMBREMEE

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2009
EFENFT=AS—ALEE

9. FINANCE COSTS 9. B A
2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT T T
Interest on bank borrowings wholly BRAFNENZETT
repayable within five years BEZFE 17,403 18,748
Less: amounts capitalised to property, B BRYE BEEREZ
plant and equipment BREHE (6,802) (6,879)
10,601 11,869
Borrowing costs capitalised during the year ended 31st RBE_ZTZNF+_A=+T—BLEFERER
December, 2009 arising on the general borrowing pool of SE—REESEBRTERNZBEERABERTKE
the Group were calculated by applying a capitalisation rate of ERTZRERNCEELELIIR(ZTEZT/NEF :
approximately 3.3% (2008: 3.0%) per annum to expenditure 3.0%):FEMSH °
on the qualifying assets.
10.INCOMETAX EXPENSE 10. T S BB X
2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FAT
Current tax: BNEARR 1A
Hong Kong Profits Tax BBFER 1,207 1,265
PRC Enterprise Income Tax R DEMRETR 789 585
1,996 1,850
Deferred tax (note 25) i RE 718 (B 5E25) 9,660 4,420
11,656 6,270
On 26th June, 2008, the Hong Kong Legislative Council passed R-TBZNERNA-+B B EF2HBC
the Revenue Bill 2008 which reduced corporate profits tax rate ZENFWRABRHNERY H-_ZTEZEN/—_TZ
from 17.6% to 16.5% effective from the year of assessment NEMEERELL B2 5 FERER175%F K
2008/2009. Therefore, Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at £16.5% c At - B MNEHEWEEE G E
16.5% of the estimated assessable profit for both years. BRI 2 16.56%5 & o
Taxation arising in other jurisdictions is calculated at the rates HUMR EEREA 2 MEBENIZEBER EER 2
prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions. ERER R o
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HOP FUNG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
SEEEERARLE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FREMBREMEE

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2009
E=EENF ATt —AULEE

10.INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

A portion of the Group's profits are earned by the Macau
subsidiaries of the Group incorporated under the Macau
SAR'’s Offshore Law. Pursuant to the Macau SAR's Offshore
Law, such portion of profits are exempted from Macau
complimentary tax, which is currently at 12% of the profits.
Further, in the opinion of the directors of the Company, that
portion of the Group’s profit is not at present subject to
taxation in any other jurisdiction in which the Group operates.

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC, the
major operating PRC subsidiaries of the Group are exempted
from PRC Enterprise Income Tax for two years starting from
their first profit-making year, followed by a 50% reduction for
the next three years.

Under the law of the People’s Republic of China on Enterprise
Income Tax (the “EIT Law"”) and Implementation Regulation of
the EIT Law, the tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% from
1st January, 2008 onwards.

The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the
profit before taxation per the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income as follows:

10.Fi8HA X #)

REEEF D FET B ANEERBERPIERITTRE
B SR @B M AL 2 R PIH B A B P ERER © 1R IR
BPVEFRITT IR R BEFOE R - & A AUE B A S
MRPIE B (B AR A B Z12%E00) » soh - A
RAEERL > BAMAKEZ D FEIFE AR
AEEREME TMEMRDEER ABATIR -

RIBEB 2 FBEDEPIRER  AEBETEER
TEEECWNEBARAR G EERNFEENMFER
HRedMmPBCRMAEN  ER=ZFEB250%
TERERMAER -

BREBEHPEARKMBEECEMSTOE(EEMSR
EDRERAEHRAERGD B —FTFTNEF—
A—BE hERBRARZHER25% °

FARBIHEGAEEZERERARENFEZ
HERWT -

2009 2008
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET T T
Profit before taxation Tt A 7 95,421 47,702
Tax at Hong Kong Profits Tax rate of 16.56% & &5 E16.56% (ZFZ )\ F :
(2008: 16.5%) 16.5% ) 5 & 2 i 1A 15,745 7871
Tax effect of income not taxable for BERBRBRAZRBZE
tax purpose (726) (2,090)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for 7~ A] 1% 5 st & Fi 75 5 £
tax purpose 1,730 1,495
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised AERREBEIRETE - 922
Utilisation of tax losses previously FRLABERZRIEBEEE
not recognised (115) (153)
Tax effect of deductible temporary LA ABRUINREREZE 2
differences previously not recognised M2 - (209)
Effect of tax exemption/different tax rate of =R B[} /B A Bl B R E /T XK
PRC subsidiaries TRz ZE 5,101 2,618
Effect of tax exemption granted to Macau 2 P} & A 7] #A % B 1B
subsidiaries wE (10,370) (4,999)
Deferred tax on undistributed earnings of A B} & A 7] & 2 Ik & | 2 i I&
PRC subsidiaries (note 25) 75 18 (B 5£25) - 210
Others E A 291 605
Tax charge for the year FEMEBERXZ 11,656 6,270

Contingent liabilities relating to taxation of the Group are set
out in note 30.
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HOP FUNG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
SEKEEERARLE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FREMBREMEE

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2009
EFENFT=AS—ALEE

11. PROFIT FORTHE YEAR N.EEFB
2009 2008
HK$°000 HK$'000
FER FAT
Profit for the year has been arrived at after 4FE FEE 0k (5t A) F3I& 18 :
charging (crediting):
Auditor's remuneration 1% 25 Bl B <& 1,480 1,380
(Reversal of) allowance for inventories (BED)fFEREEGIATHEERA]
(included in “cost of sales” and"cost RERAEAIZEERA])
of inventories recognised as expenses”) k=)
(note) (13,851) 13,275
Cost of inventories recognised BRAERST 2 FEE KA
as expenses 727,762 835,341
Depreciation of property, plant ME BERREZFE
and equipment 61,529 46,858
Exchange loss, net IE 5 g5 i858
(included in “other expenses”) (FTATEARR X ]) 1,070 =
Release of prepaid lease payments on BB + b F A #ETE AN A & 5RIR
land use rights 493 493
Loss on disposal of property, plant HEWE BMERXEEE
and equipment 164 8
Impairment losses (reversal of B 5 W I 2R EEE
impairment loss) on trade receivables (BORER#E)
(included in “other expenses”) (FFATEMAR]) 3,553 (2,910)
Operating lease rental for warehouse and A E NP A EKLHEHR S
office premises 101 112
Staff costs B ITRA
Directors’ emoluments (note 12) E=5d e (HaE12) 12,218 11,078
Other staff HEMBET
- salaries and other allowances —Fe ME i ERL 47534 38,330
— retirement benefit scheme — RRAE T 5T 8l 4 5%
contributions 3,168 1,959
— share-based payments — BBz 1,496 1,650
64,416 53,017
Note:  The reversal of allowance for inventories is recognised based on s KSETEREFSEERL CEREBsROSEEE
the increase in net realisable value following the gradual recovery SEEZIEIN T LARER

of economic downturn.
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HOP FUNG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
FEKEEZERERLF

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FREMBREMEE

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2009
HE-SENFI=A=+—ALEE

12.DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND EMPLOYEES' 12.E=M < & &2 &b

EMOLUMENTS
Directors -
Other emoluments
Hit &
Retirement
Salaries benefit
and other scheme Share-based
benefits contributions  payments 2009 2008
Fees oK Bonus  RIREFH ARM AT Total Total
we  HttEd AL FTEIfE ¥ Me#E Mess
HK$'00 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTAET FTAET FTAET FTAET TAET TERT FTAET
Mr. Hui Sum Kwok FHRERTAE = 2,184 84 12 501 2,781 2,435
Mr. Hui Sum Ping HRELE - 2,184 84 12 583 2,863 2,632
Mr. Hui Sum Tai TREEE - 1,924 74 12 707 2,717 2,624
Mr. Wong Wing Por TEERE - 2,002 77 12 556 2,647 2,277
Ms. HuiYuen Li FHAZL - 611 24 12 179 826 826
Mr. Liu Kwok Fai, Alvan BEBLE 108 - - - 20 128 128
Mr. Chee Man Sang, Eric MRAELE 108 - - - 20 128 128
Mr. Wong Chu Leung BRRRAE 108 - - - 20 128 128
“EEAER
Total for 2009 [ k] 324 8,905 343 60 2,586 12,218 11,078
“TENEE
Total for 2008 MemeE 315 8,767 - 60 1,936 11,078
Bonuses to directors are determined based on the financial BEREZRADNZEBRE_TENF T _A=1+—
performance of the Group for the two years ended 31st BUEMEFEAREZHBERNETE °
December, 2009.
During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to FA FEEHEXNEMNMNE TIHEESER
these directors as an inducement to join or upon joining the BEEMASMERENMARESR Z RESHIER
Group or as compensation for loss of office and no director had HEBHES TEEENEEAMNE -

waived any emoluments.
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HOP FUNG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
GEKEEZRERLF

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FREMBREMEE

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2009
HE-SENFI=A=+—ALEE

12.DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND EMPLOYEES' 12.EEM4 REEHFM &)
EMOLUMENTS (continued)

Employees ==

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the AEBAUESHFMATHFEM(ZZESTNEF :
Group, four (2008: four) were directors of the Company WAL BARRIEE  BHEZHEME RN EXXFHT -
whose emoluments are set out above. The emoluments of the BN U(ZEENF : — AT ZEBEWT :

remaining one (2008: one) individual were as follows:

2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHERT FA& T
Salaries and other benefits e kEMmBF 812 750
Retirement benefit scheme contributions & K 1@ F| 5 21 £t % 12 12
Share-based payments ARG 2 2 2 i 513 390
1,337 1,152
13.DIVIDENDS 13.% B
2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Final dividend paid in respect of 2008 of nil Bk —ZZ N\ F R RS FRZH 1
(2008: Final dividend paid in respect of (ZEENF :BR-_ZZTLF
2007 of 4.32 HK cents) per share REARR B A% 4.327540) - 20,864
Interim dividend paid in respect of 2009 BER-ZZEZNFFPRE
of 1.00 HK cent per share FA%1.0078 1L 4,829 -
4,829 20,864
The final dividend of 2.20 HK cents per ordinary share in EEERERNBEE-_STAF+=_A=+—HL
respect of the year ended 31st December, 2009 has been FEZRAKRE SR L BR22081 - EEFAR
proposed by the Directors and is subject to approval by the ARABRFRREEREBAFRSHE  FEEE -

shareholders of the Company in the forthcoming annual
general meeting.
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HOP FUNG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
FEKEEZERERLF

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FREMBREMEE

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2009

BE—EFNFL-A=F+—HILFE

14.EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share
attributable to the owners of the Company is based on the

following data:

14.5KREF

B E

ARARBEAANBEEREARBERNTIZAT

2009 2008
HK$°000 HK$'000
FER FAT
Earnings ZF|
Earnings for the purposes of basic and SFEEREAREEARN 2 EF
diluted earnings per share 83,765 41,432
2009 2008
Number of shares &g - gE|
Weighted average number of ordinary STEEREKRRF Z INEFH
shares for the purpose of basic I 3 A% A% X
earnings per share 482,924,000 482,924,000
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares HifERERFE 2 BB SL @R 2
in respect of share options & 2,577,829 -
Weighted average number of ordinary STEEREERA 2 NEFE T ERK
shares for the purpose of diluted fi% £k
earnings per share 485,501,829 482,924,000
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HOP FUNG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
GEKEEZRERLF

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FREMBREMEE

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2009
HE-SENFI=A=+—ALEE

15.PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

15.9% BERRHE

Furniture, Plant,
Leasehold fixtures machinery
Factory land and Leasehold and office and
Construction premises buildings improvements  equipment  equipment Motor
inprogress in the PRC AELH HENE BA-$E  HE - #8 vehicles Total
REIR FERE REF %6 RBLZRE K&k RE @
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL TEL TEL AL TEL TAL AL TEL
cosT 7%
At 1st January, 2008 —“ZZ\§-A-H 395,215 139,982 4,374 29,970 9,592 360,147 9,539 948,819
Exchange adjustments Rk - - 102 761 43 972 83 1,961
Additions R 227542 - - 3,740 1,230 116,762 797 350,071
Disposals HE s = - - (84) (456) = (540)
Transfer E (531,189) 308,557 - - - 222,632 - -
At 31st December, 2008 “EEN\E+-fA=1-H 91,568 448539 4,476 3447 10,781 700,057 10,419 1,300,311
Exchange adjustments EXAE = = 2) (13) (1) (225) 2) (243)
Additions 5 10,925 10,538 - 3,575 2577 136,789 826 165,230
Disposals HE = - - - (57) (721) (835) (1,613)
Transfer g5 (102,493) 1,696 - 272 - 100,525 - -
At 31st December, 2009 ZEENFTZA=1-H = 460,773 4474 38,305 13,300 936,425 10,408 1,463,685
DEPRECIATION FEREH
AND AMORTISATION
At 1st January, 2008 —“ZE\5-A-H - 22,580 489 18,187 3,855 104,275 4,788 154,174
Exchange adjustments BEHHE - - 5 419 8 298 45 775
Provided for the year FERE - 10,759 179 5,697 990 27556 1,677 46,858
Eliminated on disposals HER T # = = - - (32) (104) - (136)
At 31st December, 2008 ZEEN\FTZA=1-A - 33,339 673 24,303 4,821 132,025 6,510 201,671
Exchange adjustments ERAE - - - 6 - 2% 1 31
Provided for the year ERER - 18,134 179 5522 1122 34,987 1,585 61,529
Eliminated on disposals HERTH = = = = (33) (308) (451) (789)
At 31st December, 2009 “STNET-A=1-H - 51,473 852 29831 5910 166,731 7645 262,442
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31st December, 2009 ZEENETZAZT-R - 409,300 3622 8,474 7390 769,694 2763 1,201,243
At 31st December, 2008 ZEENFTZA=1-H 91,568 415,200 3803 10,168 5,960 568,032 3909 1,098,640
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HOP FUNG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
SEEEERARLE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FREMBREMEE

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2009
HE=SEAFF=A=1— AU FE

15.PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 15.9% BERRKE#)

The above items of property, plant and equipment are L BMERZEFAUNESERIUTER
depreciated on a straight-line basis at the following rates per e
annum:
Factory premises in the PRC 4% R [ = 4%
Leasehold land and buildings 4% HELH RIEF 4%
Leasehold improvements 20% HEWEEE 20%
Furniture, fixtures and office equipment 10% R -HEBRPHAERME 10%
Plant, machinery and equipment 3% - 33'5% M e R&E 3% - 33':%
Motor vehicles 20% RE 20%
2009 2008
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
The carrying value of the Group's ERNTZAEEHE L REF
leasehold land and buildings shown ZEEESRE
above comprises:
Situated in Hong Kong under R EBEBWRBHABAOFEE
medium-term lease 1,389 1,465
Situated in Macau under BRI IR B SR AEE
medium-term lease 2,233 2,338

3,622 3,803

16.PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS ON LAND USE 16.ti#FAERENHERE

RIGHTS
2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FA&T
The Group'’s prepaid lease payments on ANEE T FREENBERE
land use rights comprise: B
Land use rights in the PRC AL P R B 2 & 3 (50 R A
Medium-term lease HEAFE 49 35,170 35,663
Analysed for reporting purposes as: EHRMEDNT :
Non-current asset FERBEE 34,361 34,854
Current asset BB E 809 809
35,170 35,663
Included in the Group's prepaid lease payments on land use AEBRBz THFERAERNEERESY 2E
rights is HK$1,995,000 (2008: HK$2,056,000) prepayments 1,995,000 7 (=Z T Z A& : 2,056,000% 7T ) 2 M
under processing arrangement which represent the prepaid TITRBANK DELHEAECEHET 2B
amount under an operating lease for land use rights. &% -
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HOP FUNG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
GEKEEZRERLF

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FREMBREMEE

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2009
E-EFAF LAt —ALEE

17.INVENTORIES 17. 78
2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FA& T
Raw materials JR A A4 136,986 54,099
Work in progress ERGH 773 372
Finished goods BUAK oA 17,103 11,160
154,862 65,631
18.TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 18.E5 R HAEWRE
2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FET
Trade receivables H 5 W RIE 167,714 109,684
Less: allowance for doubtful debts B RERB S (4,356) (803)
163,358 108,881
Other receivables H b fE YR 7k I8 192 6,538
Total trade and other receivables B REMBERRIEESE 163,550 115,419
The Group allows credit periods ranging from 5 to 150 days to AEBSHETEHEFSEI0BEEH - BRI AR
its trade customers which may be extended to selected trade BERERFEAEB B FERMREHEMTE R
customers depending on their trade volume and history of ZEEH - THARRERNRERERB BNR
settlement with the Group. The following is an aged analysis REBEEMEINE S ERGRERKR DT :
of trade receivables net of allowance for doubtful debts
presented based on the invoice date at the end of the reporting
period:
2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Within 30 days 308 A 137,639 89,573
31 - 60 days 31260H 11,823 13,024
61 —90 days 61290H 6,281 4,156
Over 90 days H B0 H 7,615 2,128
163,358 108,881
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HOP FUNG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FREMBREMEE

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2009
EFENFT=AS—ALEE

18.TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

Before accepting any new customer, the Group uses an
external litigation search to assess the potential customer's
credit quality and defines credit limits on a customer-by-
customer basis. Limits and scoring attributed to customers
are reviewed monthly. Trade receivables that are neither past
due nor impaired relate to customers for whom there was no
recent history of default.

Included in the Group’s trade receivable balance are debtors
with an aggregate carrying amount of HK$17,487.000 (2008:
HK$11,278,000) which were past due at the reporting date
but for which the Group has not provided for impairment loss.
Such amount relates to a number of independent customers
that have good trade and payment records with the Group.
There has not been a significant change in credit quality of the
relevant customers and the Group believes that the balances
are still recoverable. The Group does not hold any collateral
over these balances. The average age of these receivables is
54 days based on invoice dates (2008: 41 days).

Ageing of trade receivables which are past due
but not impaired

18.EZREMEWRE2)

EENEAMBETA  ASESRAINMFRER
RO AGEEBREERFPEREERZGRAERAE
HEFREFERE -BEZEFEREINEE
AtEti@ma - MARBH X RRBEZE 5 EKKIA
BEUTHIY BN R EFPER -

AEBZESRRFEEKTBIEREEER
XA 174870008 T 2 EW R B(ZZEE N\ F
11,278,000870)  ZERERMEBEBE ©
AEBIERELREBBETEBE 2SHEH
EAEBRBRITBESIINATHRZZRBYE
FEB ZERXEFZEEEZUEEANE B
AEEREDHAIKEEBLERS  AEBWEFRZ
EEEMBETAZERR BEZXZAH - Z
LRWABEBNELRE AMB(ZTZTNE 41
H) -

EEABERREZES BRFEZRE

2009 2008

HK$'000 HK$'000

TR T T

Overdue 1 to 30 days #mE1E30H 17,487 11,278
Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts REREZ2EE

2009 2008

HK$°000 HK$'000

FExT T T

Balance at beginning of the year F KR 803 3,713

Impairment losses (reversal of impairment = 5 fE Y 18 2 B R R E
losses) recognised on trade receivables B8 (B EREEE) 3,653 (2,910)
Balance at end of the year FREH 4,356 803

Impairment losses were recognised based on the Group's
historical experience, aged analysis and internal assessment
of the recoverability of the debt. The Group does not hold any
collateral over these balances.

ANNUAL REPORT 2009 —ZZ N FF#H

BEBEIREASELHERZBELR  RiK
AT R B 1 & Y BB ST A T AR RR o AN SR B AR
IR EEBMS A EMERR -



HOP FUNG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
SEKEEERARLE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FREMBREMEE

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2009
EFENFT=AS—ALEE

19.DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 19.97T4€®MIT A
2009 2008
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
BE a& BE afE
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FAET TFA T
Foreign exchange SNEREIE A
forward contracts 262 (1,206) 706 (24,129)
Interest rate swaps 7| 2 43 HY - (65) - (418)
262 (1,271) 706 (24,547)
The Group has entered foreign exchange forward contracts AEEFUIINERBELHUNERER TUIINEE
to manage its exposure to currency risk of certain trade, bills 2B ZENEMENDTBEAS SRR o
and other payables denominated in foreign currencies. These ZEMET AW RIRE PEHEAREIE ©

derivatives are not accounted for under hedging accounting.

2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#E T FA T
Net cash inflow from settlement of FARTESRIALH
derivative financial instruments during ZERERA
the year 620 4,433
At 31st December, 2009, the Group had outstanding foreign R-ZBEZAFE+-_A=+—H KEBEHKET
exchange forward contracts that are measured at fair value at ZONEERBMEATRBRERRZATFENE - R
the end of the reporting period. The Group has an obligation, in BEERAEZER KREBEEFERBEAZEL
accordance with the terms of the respective contracts, to buy XN HEAHNRSAL BEsIAEBRESR
or sell US$ monthly until maturity. The instruments purchased B RERMABIIZINERBPENEEZERA
are to be settled on a net basis. The major terms of these T
outstanding foreign exchange forward contracts are as follow:
(i) Foreign exchange forward contracts as at (i) R=ZZEFENRET=ZBA=1+T—HZHE
31st December, 2009 BHEDN
Total monthly Remaining total
notional amount notional amount Contract rate Maturity
BRERELH HTERELE ERER & 7 5 8
Buy US$7500,000 (note i) US$71,500,000 HK$7.726/US$1 to HK$7.744/US$1 Within 2 years
B A7500,000% 7t (M &%) 71,500,000 7T 77268 T N ETLETIAME T 1ET MER
Buy US$3,500,000 (note ii) US$18,500,000 HK$7.720/US$1 to HK$7.7369/US$1 Within 1 year
& A3,500,0003 7T (Mt i) 18,500,000% 7T 77205 7T 1ETLETTICB T 1ETL —FR
Sell US$2,000,000 (note iii) US$2,000,000 RMB7.635/US$1 to RMB7.670/US$1 Within 1 year
& 112,000,0003 7T (Kt #Fiii) 2,000,000 7T ANR#76357L 1ETLE —F R
ARM76707T,/ 1% 7T
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HOP FUNG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
SEEEERARLE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FREMBREMEE

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2009

E=EENF ATt —AULEE

19.DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(i) Foreign exchange forward contracts as at 31st

December, 2009 (continued)

Notes:

ANNUAL REPORT 2009

Under the above foreign exchange forward contracts, the Group will
receive US$ and deliver HK$ at stipulated contract rate on a monthly
basis. At each monthly settlement, when market HK$/US$ exchange
rate moves favourable to the Group (i.e. spot HK$/US$ exchange rate
is at or higher than the contract rate), the Group gets to buy the agreed
notional amount of US$ at the contract rate. However, when market
HK$/US$ exchange rate moves unfavourable to the Group (i.e. spot
HK$/US$ exchange rate is lower than the contract rate), the Group gets
to buy 2 times of the agreed notional amount of USD at the contract
rate with HK$.

Under the above foreign exchange forward contracts, the Group will
receive US$ and deliver HK$ at stipulated contract rate on a monthly
basis. At each monthly settlement, when market HK$/US$ exchange
rate moves favourable to the Group (i.e. spot HK$/US$ exchange rate is
higher than the contract rate), the Group gets to buy the agreed notional
amount of US$ at the contract rate. However, when market HK$/US$
exchange rate moves unfavourable to the Group (i.e. spot HK$/US$
exchange rate is at or lower than the contract rate), the Group gets to
buy 2 times of the agreed notional amount of USD at the contract rate
with HKS.

Several contracts with total monthly notional amount of US$3,000,000
contain additional feature which limit the Group's potential gains. At
the settlement date, if the spot HK$/US$ exchange rate is higher than
a stipulated cap rate, the Group will not get to buy the contractual
notional at the contract rate.

Under the above foreign exchange forward contracts, the Group is
a party that has an obligation to deliver USD and receive RMB at a
series of predetermined prices, based on the price calculated with a
pre-specified formula. The Group will deliver US$ and receive RMB at
stipulated contract rate on a monthly basis. At each monthly settlement,
when market RMB/US$ exchange rate moves favourable to the Group
(i.e. spot RMB/US$ exchange rate is at or lower than the contract
rate), the Group gets to sell the agreed notional amount of US$ at the
contract rate. However, when market RMB/US$ exchange rate moves
unfavourable to the Group (i.e. spot RMB/US$ exchange rate is higher
than the contract rate), the Group gets to sell 2 times of the agreed
notional amount of USD at the contract rate with RMB.

—ERNEFER

19.7TE€MIE %)
(i) R=Z=ZEEAF+=ZA=+—HZNE

B

EHEN @)

By

RIEERIEEREN  AEEUAEEAOEZZAR
AEXETLREHBETL -REAZER EBT / ExmiH
PERA T AEER (B EHET ETEXSNAZH
BRER) AEBERRANEXEARELERSEL
X AT - BB T ETTISE X AR A& B R (A
EHBL/ ETEXERAGNEX) AIXEE KRS
TRHNEXEFEARETRRSBELIRT

BRI ERSMNEERRAHN  ARBENETANEXZAER
AZTRELET REALER  EEL/ E1mE
EXF T AEEE(BIEHET XTEXSNENE
R) AKERZEANEXBEARELREELIET -
WM BT R G B R AR A S EE (A 8B
T/ ETERERHEREGOEER)  AIAEBFRE
TANEXREEBEARERESHEIET °

BABEMALEHR3000000ETIETANREER
SIAEEBERFZEE -REER  WEBHBT =
TEEREREE LREXR AEEBTRRANES
BEAEGHNBESE -

RIEERINEEREK  AEEAE BEE —FIIRE
BEEAZAAREEEZER BHEXTREAAR
Bal g ARBERBUEEANEXZABRBLELR
BAARE -NEBALHEE MARK EXITHHEX
BFRRAEBEBIESMARE ETEXSRAERE
WER) AAREESERANEXBEREETERESRL
XTT o AT AR EITTIBE R WAL EAF (A
EHMARE ELBEXSRANER)  AIREEEIN
ARBRANEXERELNRECRREREZIET -
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FREMBREMEE

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2009
HE=SEAFF=A=1— AU FE

19.DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(if) Foreign exchange forward contracts as at 31st
December, 2008

19.7TE€MIE %)

((IIR=ZZBENEFET=ZA=1+—HZHE
EHEYN

Total monthly Remaining total

notional amount notional amount Contract rate Maturity

BRERELHE MHRTERESHE BHE=X & % 2R

Buy US$3,600,000 US$23,100,000 HK$7.726/US$1 to Within 1 year
(note i) HK$7.748/US$1

B A3,600,0003 T 23,100,0003 7T 77267 1ETLE —F A
iEsaD) 77488 T 1ETT

Buy US$4,000,000 US$42,500,000 HK$7.720/US$1 to Within 2 years
(note ii) HK$7.750/US$1

H A4,000,000% 7T 42,500,000 7© 77208 1ETE M F AN
(Bt 3Fii) 77507 7T /1% T

Sell US$7500,000 US$39,500,000 RMB6.085/US$1 to Within 1 year
(note iii) RMB6.8472/US$1

& 1117500,0003 7T 39,500,000 7T AR¥6.0857T, 1ETLE —F R
(P =iii) AR#6.84727T /1% 7T

Notes: B 5

Under the above foreign exchange forward contracts, the Group
will receive US$ and deliver HK$ at stipulated contract rate on a
monthly basis. At each monthly settlement, when market HK$/
US$ exchange rate moves favourable to the Group (i.e. spot HK$/
US$ exchange rate is at or higher than the contract rate), the Group
gets to buy the agreed notional amount of US$ at the contract
rate. However, when market HK$/US$ exchange rate moves
unfavourable to the Group (i.e. spot HK$/US$ exchange rate is
lower than the contract rate), the Group gets to buy 2 times of the
agreed notional amount of USD at the contract rate with HK$.

Under the above foreign exchange forward contracts, the Group
will receive US$ and deliver HK$ at stipulated contract rate on a
monthly basis. At each monthly settlement, when market HK$/
US$ exchange rate moves favourable to the Group (i.e. spot HK$/
US$ exchange rate is higher than the contract rate), the Group
gets to buy the agreed notional amount of US$ at the contract
rate. However, when market HK$/US$ exchange rate moves
unfavourable to the Group (i.e. spot HK$/US$ exchange rate is at or
lower than the contract rate), the Group gets to buy 2 times of the
agreed notional amount of USD at the contract rate with HKS.

Several contracts with total monthly notional amount of
US$27,000,000 contain additional feature which limit the Group’s
potential gains. At the settlement date, if the spot HK$/US$
exchange rate is higher than a stipulated cap rate, the Group will
not get to buy the contractual notional at the contract rate.

. BELRIEEHEH AKBEETEHEXRR
ABAZTRERET REALER 28T/
55 7T T 45 B 3 ) 4 AN 5 M B (B0 & HR0E T R e
RENIBRNEHER) AKREKRANEERE
ABREERESBEZET - A - BT ETHH
BE = SR AN S B (B 88 ELERER S
MEX)  AIXKERKZBETANEXEEEAR
EEBREEIET °

i. REEZIEEHEH AKEUBIESHERE
ABAZLREHET REALER - EBT/
ExTSEEMNGFARERBIEHET, ELE
FERANER)  AEEBZANEXREARTE
BEEBM2ET oA BET/FELWIHGEERAR
FAREEE(BIEHB T ETEXSENLERE
WEX)  AIAKEKZBETANEXEEEAR
ERBLHIRTT ©

B ABERLEFER27000000XTZETERARSE
BERHEAKEEERBMNZEE -REER - WEH
BT/ ETEXSNET EREXE - AEEHKT
BRENEXBEAARNEERSE -
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FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2009
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19.DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(ii) Foreign exchange forward contracts as at 31st
December, 2008 (continued)

Notes: (continued)

Under the above foreign exchange forward contracts, the Group is
a party that has an obligation to deliver USD and receive RMB at a
series of predetermined prices, based on the price calculated with
a pre-specified formula.

Several contracts with total monthly notional amount of
US$38,500,000, the Group will deliver US$ and receive RMB
at stipulated contract rate on a semi-monthly/monthly basis. At
each semi-monthly/monthly settlement, when market RMB/US$
exchange rate moves favourable to the Group (i.e. spot RMB/US$
exchange rate is at or lower than the contract rate), the Group
gets to sell the agreed notional amount of US$ at the contract
rate. However, when market RMB/US$ exchange rate moves
unfavourable to the Group (i.e. spot RMB/US$ exchange rate is
higher than the contract rate), the Group gets to sell 2 times of the
agreed notional amount of USD at the contract rate with RMB.

Several contracts with total monthly notional amount of
US$23,500,000 contain additional feature that the relevant banks
can terminate the contracts based on the pre-specified formula.

(iii)interest rate swaps contracts as at 31st
December, 2009 and 2008

19574 E€BMI B2
(Il R=ZBENF+ZA=1+—HZNE
EHEHN(#E)
fiaE : (&)

i. REBEEDINERHEH  AEEREEMEE —FF
BRERLEEACAXFLEEZER EHEXTR
BAANRKZEINT -

MEAEEELEAR38500000KXTZETAKM
FOAKERUEEANERGYR AEHEET
REAARY -REBFXA/ ALKEE MARE/
ELTBEXERRASEEIEHARK E
ERERNFERANER)  AAEESZSHNE
REHBEERESBE 2R - Al - WARKE =
THEEXEAEEAF(NERARE X5
REMERX)  AIASEGUARBRANERE
EEHRERRSE LR

BAXREESFER23500000KTZ2ETENSA
B2HER  HARTAREBRELEHZAANKIL

REAH -

MR=-"ZFFNFR-_ZFFENEFE+ A
S+-HZAREHEN

Notional amount Maturity date Swaps

EREH | H B =5

HK$50,000,000 17.5.2010 From HIBOR floating rate to HIBOR floating rate with
maximum interest rate of 4.2%

50,000,000/ 7T HEBRITRAEZEFREZEERBRITRAEREZL
T M EH42%

HK$50,000,000 25.5.2010 From HIBOR floating rate to HIBOR floating rate with

maximum interest rate of 4.3%
HEBRTAXEFEZEERBRITRAEREEE
&= H E B43%

50,000,000/% 7T
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FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2009
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20.BANK BALANCES AND CASH 20BTHEBRREE
Bank balances and cash comprise cash held by the Group and RITEHRLRR SR ASBEFE 2 RS RRITT
bank balances at prevailing market rates from 0.01% to 1.98% SR ENF0.01%E198% (ZTZENF : 0.01%E
(2008: 0.01% t0 0.36%). 0.36%) < RIT#E A ©
Included in the carrying amount of the Group's bank balances, AEBUENBEEEEZNEEBENINZ B
approximately HK$79,523,000 (2008: HK$148,417,000), AR ZxT BLERTINBEZRITERZ
HK$1,291,000 (2008: HK$3,098,000), HK$2,363,000 (2008: 85 B 9 5l 49 579,523,000 L (Z T T )\ F ¢
HK$6,316,000) and nil (2008: HK$4,000) denominated in RMB, 148,41700078 7T) ~ 1,291,000 7T (Z 2 ZT )\ F :
USD, HKD and Euro dollars respectively are the currencies 3,098,000 JT) * 2,363,00078 T(= T T )\ F :
other than the functional currencies of the relevant group 6,316,000 ;L) R E B (== ZT )\ F : 4,000
entities. EIT) °
21.TRADE, BILLS AND OTHER PAYABLES 2185 RERHMEMKE
The following is an aged analysis of trade and bills payables THARBERRERBLEZHHMENN ZE S R
presented based on the invoice date at the end of the reporting EEERNRIB ZBRE DT ¢
period:
2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Current BN Hf 96,997 41,799
Overdue 1 to 30 days #HE1Z=30H 6,005 1,143
Overdue 31 to 60 days #8131 %E60 H 1,408 48
Overdue for more than 60 days #HEIG0H WA 2,834 636
107,244 43,626
Payables for the acquisition of property, BEYME BELREZ
plant and equipment FE 3 1E 29,931 17015
Other payables and accrued charges H b B 5B K BT S 53,324 42,147
190,499 102,788
The average credit period on purchases of goods is 34 days BEEMz2TFHEERAMB(ZEENSF : 31
(2008: 31 days). The Group has financial risk management H) AKEFBMBRBREBEEK  UEERAA
policies in place to ensure that all payables are within the credit ERNREAEEESRRA -

time frame.
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FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2009
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22.UNSECURED BANK BORROWINGS 2EBEFRTEE
Unsecured bank borrowings comprise: EIMFRITEERTE
2009 2008
Effective interest rate HK$000 HK$'000
BRI E FET T T
Bank loans RITER 1.293% - 6.870%
(2008: 2.481% -6.151%) 487,217 465,168
Bank advances RITE R 1.400% - 2.480%
(2008: 1.800% - 4.820%) 78,920 124,659
Trust receipt loans EREWIEE R 1.330% - 2.329%
(2008: 1.500% - 5.928%) 72,216 31,832
638,353 621,659
2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHERT T T
Carrying amount repayable: FEEEREE
On demand or within one year RERKK—FA 271,161 282,974
More than one year, but not exceeding —F EETBBMRE
two years 97,904 224,445
More than two years, but not exceeding M F A F{ERFBIB A F
five years 269,288 114,240
638,353 621,659
Less: Amount due within one year B RRBAEGIN R —FA
shown under current liabilities | Hi ¢ & (271,161) (282,974)
Amounts due after one year —FRIHAELE 367,192 338,685
All the bank loans are arranged at floating rates, thus exposing FARITERNEDNELZHE FAKEAZR
the Group to cash flow interest rate risk. enREFNERRER -
Included in the carrying amount of the Group’s unsecured bank AEBENHBEEER 2 6E %’i AN 2 B &
borrowings, approximately HK$113,507,000 bank borrowings ARBINEBZERKBETEEZEEAEBELOA
(2008: HK$127,955,000) are denominated in RMB that is the 113,507,000 7t (ZZ T\ & :127955,000/4 7T) °

currency other than the functional currency of the relevant
group entity.

ANNUAL REPORT 2009 —ZZ N FF#H



HOP FUNG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
SEKEEERARLE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FREMBREMEE
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23.UNSECURED STRUCTURED BORROWING

The Group entered into a contract of unsecured structured
borrowing with a bank during the year ended 31st December,
2006 for a period of five years. The contract contains embedded
derivatives and was designated as financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss on initial recognition.

BEEREREER

REBE-ZZTZERFT_RA=+—RBILFE K&
BERTI - BRFHZBRREBEESL -
ZEKNBEMNHEAETETAR  MRERERR
BERARFEFABERZVBEE -

2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000
T F& T

Unsecured structured borrowing, EERAEBEE 28R

classified as:

Current (note) BUVEA (B 5E) 7,750 7750
Non-current JEBNEA 8,111 25,325
15,861 33,075

Note:  The current portion represents the estimated fair value of amount
repayable to the bank within one year from the reporting date.

Major terms of the unsecured structured borrowing at 31st
December, 2009 and 2008 are set out below:

s : BV BENARH®E BB —FARRITEESS
ZEFAFE -

R-BEAFR_ZFEENF+_A=1+—8 &
EHAEEEEZESIERAOT ¢

Borrowing Maturity date Repayment amount
B8 ZH# A HELH
US$5,000,000 25.9.201 First half year : 2% per annum on the notional amount
5,000,000 7T BYF BEAEESEL2%
Remaining 4 and half years: 8% minus (6% x N/M) per annum
on the notional amount
ATINEY - BEHRE LT L8%M6% x N/M)
Where: Hep
N = number of business days in the period for which Spread N = BEHEZEXRAAS>=-00%
Rate > =-0.05% R
M = actual number of business days in the period M = HIRZEREXE AR

Notional amount = US$50,000,000

“Spread Rate” means 10-year US$-ISDA-Swap Rate minus
2-year US$-ISDA-Swap Rate

“10-year US$-ISDA-Swap Rate” means the rate for a reset date
will be the rate for U.S. Dollar swaps with a maturity of the
designated maturity of 10 years, expressed as a percentage
which appears on the Reuters Screen ISDAFIX1 Page as of
11:00 a.m. New York time on each business day.

% % & #8= 50,000,000 JT

[ B 2% | #8104 5 7T-ISDA-H2 H3 ) 3 2 4F 55 TT-ISDA-
12 B AR

[104F 25 JT-ISDA-I2 B3 | & | 5 E AT I = H H =~ 7
R BHERRAEE +FRHZETERFE
LESHERT  TRBEZLEE EFTNREGEY
BEF ) 7E 3% 35 4L R B ISDAFIX1 B #A R ©
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23.UNSECURED STRUCTURED BORROWING

(continued)

“2-year US$-ISDA-Swap Rate” means the rate for a reset date
will be the rate for U.S. Dollar swaps with a maturity of the
designated maturity of 2 years, expressed as a percentage
which appears on the Reuters Screen ISDAFIX1 Page as of
11:00 a.m. New York time on each business day.

The entire combined contract is measured at fair value that
are estimated using a discounted cash flow analysis based on
reasonable and supportable assumptions and market rates
adjusted for specific features of this instrument. Decrease in
the fair value of the unsecured structured borrowing for the
year of HK$9,464,000 has been credited to the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income. Increase in the fair
value of HK$7,157000 has been charged to the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income for the year ended 31st
December, 2008.

The structured borrowing is denominated in United States
dollars that is the currency other than the functional currency
of the relevant group entity.

BEEFLRBEE &)

[24F 3 JT-ISDA- = B &R |#5 & 2] I R B 8 2 7| =
SAEEERBAEEMERH 2 ETIEHAE
LNBEAEERR YREBELEB EFNBE(AY
B ) £ BB 3B 4L R B ISDAFIX1 B B R ©

ZAEHANEHRAFENE  MERAFEE
BIBRBESRENT  REAEMEBEEREZEBXR
BB AZEEEAR MBI Em b -
FRNERFLEBEEE 2 A FER 49,464,000/ 7T
Bf ARG E2ERERAN BE_ZEZN\F+=
A=+—HILFE  2RFEHEIMN7157000/%E T E
Rz E2EKRERANE -

BEEENXTHE METREREEER
WEEEBNIN 2 EH -

24.SHARE CAPITAL 24.1% 7
Number of
shares Share capital
BB EE [
2009 & 2008 2009 & 2008
HK$'000
FHER
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each HFREE0.10/8 T 2 L il A A% 7
Authorised: VETE MR
At the beginning and the end of the year A5 ) J2 F 48 1,000,000,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: EEITRBRRA
At the beginning and the end of the year A& ] J2 F 48 482,924,000 48,292
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HOP FUNG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
SEKEEERARLE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FREMBREMEE

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2009
EFENFT=AS—ALEE

25.DEFERRED TAXATION

The followings are the deferred tax liabilities recognised by the
Group and movements thereon during the current and prior
reporting period:

25 R FEBi R

UTAASERRCELEHIES ERR AR S H
M IAEREHAE 2 &) :

Undistributed

earnings
of PRC
Accelerated subsidiaries  Write-down of
tax depreciation A El i B 2 T inventories Total
MEBIEFE 2ZRDIKER (A D #t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THET TET THET

RZZEZNF
—H—H 3,830 - - 3,830
Charge (credit) to profit EAFE Bk

At 1st January, 2008

or loss for the year e (GTA) 6,052 210 (1,842) 4,420
At 31st December, 2008 7 —ZF )\ 4F
+=—A=+—8” 9,882 210 (1,842) 8,250
Charge to profit or EARFEERE
loss for the year HBR 7818 - 1,842 9,660
At 31st December, 2009 W = ZF 4
+=-—A=+—H 17700 210 - 17910

At 31st December, 2009, the Group had unused tax losses of RZZETZNFETA=+—H ASETHNUE

HK$5,235,000 (2008: HK$5,930,000) available to offset against
future profits. No deferred tax asset has been recognised in
respect of such tax losses due to the unpredictability of future
profit streams. The losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

Under the EIT Law of PRC, withholding tax is imposed
on dividends declared in respect of profits earned by PRC
subsidiaries from 1st January, 2008 onwards. Deferred
taxation has not been provided for in the consolidated financial
statements in respect of temporary differences attributable
to accumulated profits of the PRC subsidiaries amounting to
HK$39,687,000 (2008: HK$11,749,000) as the Group is able to
control the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences
and it is probable that the temporary differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

5 B & F B8 2 A AT IEE 18 55,235,000/5 70 (=
T LT )\ 4 :5,930,000/8 JT) ° A A TE & AR 2K
FERR BT ERZERBBEERRAELERE
BE FHBEUERBALE -

BETBRCEMREHRE  BHHEIAETENE A
AE-EENF—A—HEMBERZANBEmME
EZBEBEH - RSB A6 =582 &L
i BERZERNA BB RAETSER @ K
It 4 gk R BB B A R 2 R EF A E (L E R =
39,687,000/ jt (= ZF =T /\ 4F : 11,749,000/ 7t)
AP RRTIRELEH BREE -
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FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2009
EFENE A=t —ALFE

26.SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

Equity-settled share option scheme

The Company's share option scheme (the “Scheme”) was
adopted pursuant to a resolution passed on 4th September,
2003 for the primary purpose of providing incentives or
rewards to selected participants for their contribution to the
Group. The Scheme will expire on 3rd September, 2013.

Under the Scheme, the Board of Directors of the Company
may grant options to eligible employees, including executive or
non-executive directors (including independent non-executive
directors), of the Company, its subsidiaries, or any entity
("Invested Entity"”) in which any member of the Group holds
any equity interest, to subscribe for shares in the Company.
Additionally, the Company may, from time to time, grant share
options to any supplier of goods or services to any member of
the Group or any Invested Entity, any customer of the Group or
any Invested Entity, and any consultants, advisers, managers,
officers or entities that provides research, development or
other technological support to the Group or any Invested
Entity.

The total number of shares which may be issued upon exercise
of all options to be granted under the Scheme is not permitted
to exceed 36,000,000 shares, being 10% of the shares of
the Company in issue as at the date on which the shares of
the Company are listed on the Stock Exchange, which can be
refreshed according to the Scheme. The number of shares
which may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding options
granted and yet to be exercised at any time under the Scheme
shall not exceed 30% of the issued share capital of the
Company from time to time.

The number of shares in respect of which options may
be granted to any individual in any 12-month period is not
permitted to exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in issue
at any point in time, without prior approval from the Company'’s
shareholders in accordance with the Scheme. Where any grant
of options to a substantial shareholder or an independent non-
executive director or any of their respective associates would
result in the shares in the Company issued and to be issued
upon exercise of all options to such person in the 12-month
period up to and including the date of grant in excess of 0.1%
of the shares of the Company in issue and with a value (based
on the closing price of the shares of the Company at the offer
date of each offer) in excess of HK$5,000,000, such grant
of options must be approved in advance by the Company's
shareholders in accordance with the Scheme.
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26.SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued) 26. AR X2 X )
Equity-settled share option scheme (continued) BEINARSBERESE ()
An option may be exercised at any time during the period to BREUTREZETE RAGAR A ZHM AR
be determined and notified by the Directors to the grantee T - MARAEE  AlBEMREEREB R
and in the absence of such determination, from the date of EZERERN B RE L ZBERERD BB+
acceptance of an offer of the grant of such option to the earlier FvEEAH  NEMNERERBEMBTRKE -

of the date on which such option lapses and ten years from the
date of offer of that option. A consideration of HK$1 is payable
upon acceptance of the offer.

The exercise price is determined by the directors of the TEEBIHARANEEZTET ETAESERKRONE
Company, and will not be less than the higher of the nominal B A2 MREEBHZKHmERKGD B
value of the share; the closing price of the Company’s shares EEBHAAREXB 2 FHUTEZESE °

on the date of offer; and the average closing price of the
shares for the five business days immediately preceding the
date of offer.

The following table discloses details of the Company’s share TRXEERESENEMNEERE Z A AR B
options held by directors and other employees and movements URZEBERERFANZEEHFE :

in such holdings during the year:

2009 —E2ENE
Outstanding
Outstanding at 31.12.2009
at 1.1.2009 Granted Exercised R—ZTEH
Exercisable R=—ZZ A&  during 2009  during 2009 +=A
Option type Date of grant price —A—H —EENE —ZEENE =+-—H
BREER R B8 THEE i R AT AE R RTHE i R ATHE
HK$
BT
D 29.5.2007 2.640 18,374,360 - - 18,374,360
E 7.7.2009 0.752 - 30,000,000 - 30,000,000
18,374,360 30,000,000 - 48,374,360

Exercisable at the end of the year
RELAITE 13,780,770

Weighted average exercise price
miEEHITEE 2.640 0.752 - 1.469
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26.SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued) 26 ARz )
Equity-settled share option scheme (continued) REXNAXZERESE(Z)
2008 ZTTN\F
Outstanding
Qutstanding at 31.12.2008
at 1.1.2008 Granted Exercised M=—ZZE )\ F
Exercisable W =ZZ )\  during2008  during 2008 +=A
Option type Date of grant price —A—B ZZEZENFE ZZTT)N\HF =r—F
EREER KB 8 1188 M AR 1T AR RATHE " AR 1T
HK$
BT
D 29.5.2007 2.640 18,374,360 - - 18,374,360

Exercisable at the end of the year
RELATRE 9,187,180

Weighted average exercise price

T 7 B 2,640 - - 2640
Note: B 5

The vesting period, which is the period from the date of grant to the BREBREZZBHARLBHEA/7F APHE[ - A
exercisable date, of the share options granted is determined by directors of ARAREEFRBABREBRERETE - BEZEHREZ
the Company at each time when the options are granted. Holders of share BRERE AR R A R AI T EARE 1765 EL B AR 4 -

options granted under the Scheme may only exercise their options during
the exercisable periods as follows:

Option type D Option type E Maximum % of share options exercisable
DEBE R EXERE ATEERERSE DL
1.3.2008 - 28.2.2009 1.5.2010 - 30.4.2011 up to 50%
&= A E50%
1.3.2009 - 28.2.2010 1.5.2011 - 30.4.2012 up to 75% (to the extent not already exercised)
&= A E75% (A R1TEE BR)
1.3.2010 - 28.2.2011 1.5.2012 - 30.4.2013 up to 100% (to the extent not already exercised)
= AT EE100% (VA RATEE AR)
No share option was exercised during both years ended 31st Eﬁé:%%ﬁi&:%%)\iﬁ—:ﬂ =ft—HL
December, 2009 and 2008. M EFEE - I ET (]I EITE -
During the year ended 31st December, 2009, options type E E@%Z?::;f;fjlﬁ‘f':ﬂwi‘l'— HIEFE K=
were granted on 7th July, 2009. The estimated fair values of ETNFLA tH X HER ﬁﬁ@’f& o K H 2 BB AR
the options granted were HK$6,851,000. e 2 {5t 2 ¥ 1E 46,851,000/ 7t °
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26.SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued)
Equity-settled share option scheme (continued)

These fair values were calculated using the Binomial model.
The inputs into the model were as follows:

26.

URB Rzt e)
BRESZSGRZBERESE (&)

ZERAFEDNFEA_BARAET - ZBEXNFTHA
HEMT -

2009
Share price on the date of grant FiH A B2 RE HK$0.7507% 7T
Exercise price 1IEE HK$0.7527% 7T
Expected volatility T8 2R 18 44.25%
Expected life from date of grant BE I H MR 2 TEHFH 3.8 years
Risk-free rate 4 3 b ) = 1.45%
Expected dividend yield TE 2R AR B & =R 2.0%
Closing share price immediately EERHBAHARO KT E 2B mE
before date of grant HK$0.74078 T

Expected volatility was determined by using the historical
volatility of the Company’'s 400-day share prices before
the date of grant. The expected life used in the model has
been adjusted, based on management’s best estimate, for
the effects of non transferability, exercise restrictions and
behavioral considerations.

The Group recognised the total expense of HK$4,082,000 for
the year ended 31st December, 2009 (2008: HK$3,586,000) in
relation to share options granted by the Company.

27.OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
commitments for future minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating lease which fall due within one year of
HK$76,000 (2008: HK$84,000).

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the
Group for certain of its warehouse, ancillary office properties
and car parks. Lease is negotiated for an average term of one
year (2008: one year) with fixed monthly rentals over the term
of the lease.

27.

BHR BT E AR L A HAT400B A AR KREZ
BERBEETE ZEAMERNERFHRERE
EREB&EBRTAIERE TERSRTH
ERARZEZEBFLARE -

AEBHBRBEE_TTNAF+_A=+—H81
FERARRMBELZERESBE AL A
4,082,000/ L (== Z /\F : 3,686,000/ 7T ) °

ReHERE

RBEHR AEERERABEELHAES
ARFEHENREAE R—FREH ¢8A
76,0008 7L (ZZ = )\ F : 84,0008 7T) °

REVENFIEAEBRERSE WM AME
REEfizENES HEZFTHFHREER—
F(ZEENF: —F) IR AOPRINEE
H#H -
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28.CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 28. 5 R RIE
2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T T
Capital expenditure in respect of the BEEJHERREE P ERRIERE 2
acquisition of plant and equipment WEREEREEARAAZ
contracted for but not provided in the
consolidated financial statements 15,832 565, 2515
29.RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEME 29. R KB R 5+ 2
Hong Kong b

The Group has joined a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
(the “MPF Scheme") for its employees in Hong Kong. The
MPF Scheme is registered with the Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme Authority under the Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme Ordinance. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held
separately from those of the Group in funds under the control
of an independent trustee. Under the rule of the MPF Scheme,
the employer and its employees are each required to make
contributions to the MPF Scheme at rates specified in the
rules. The only obligation of the Group with respect to the MPF
Scheme is to make the required contributions under the MPF
Scheme.

The retirement benefit scheme contributions arising from
the MPF Scheme charged to the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income represent contributions payable to
the funds by the Group at rates specified in the rules of the
scheme.

PRC

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC are
members of a state-managed retirement benefit scheme
operated by the government of the PRC. The subsidiaries are
required to contribute a certain percentage of the salaries
of their employees to the state-managed retirement benefit
scheme. The only obligation of the Group with respect to
the retirement benefit scheme is to make the required
contributions under the scheme.

During the year, the retirement benefit scheme contributions
amounted to approximately HK$3,228,000 (2008:
HK$2,019,000).
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AEBSEBEREMARGIME A8 (5]
Berrd))  REFIRBEARV LB
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=

RERA 2 H RS R 2 BE S BIR KRR
EURRAEERFERELLETRTESZH

AEEZHENBARREASTERFESL 2H
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ZAT BB R E AR

FR RAKRE N T FR4 53,228,000 T (==
=)\ 4E : 2,019,000/ 7T ) °
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30.CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

On 9th December, 2004, a tax audit was commenced by the
Hong Kong Inland Revenue Department (the “IRD") on certain
subsidiaries of the Company, namely, Gong Ming Hop Fung
Paper Ware Factory Limited (“GMHF"), Fung Kong Hop Fung
Paper Ware Factory Limited (“FKHF") and Hop Fung (Overseas)
Trading Limited (the “Subsidiaries”), in respect of the years
of assessment 1998/1999 to 2003/2004. On 26th January,
2005, 5th January, 2006 and 2nd June, 2006, whilst these
cases are still under investigation, the IRD issued protective
assessments for the years of assessment 1998/1999,
1999/2000 and 2000/2001 to 2003/2004 respectively to the
above-mentioned subsidiaries in order not to jeopardise the
assessment powers of the IRD which will be time-barred after
6 years of assessment. In addition, the IRD issued additional
assessments to GMHF for the years of assessment 2004/2005
and 2005/2006 on 2nd June, 2006 and 19th October, 2006
respectively.

Up to date, the taxes demanded under the protective
assessments amounted to HK$83,056,444 in aggregate. The
Group had lodged objections with the IRD against all these
assessments.

Subsequent to the lodgement of objections by the Subsidiaries,
tax payment of HK$1,992,965 was made by GMHF, and tax
reserve certificates of HK$480,000 and HK$1,400,000 in
respect of the assessments for GMHF and FKHF, pending
the outcome of the tax audits and the objections, were
purchased in March 2005 and March 2006 respectively.
Further, tax reserve certificates of HK$1,717279 in respect of
the 2005/2006 assessments for GMHF, pending the outcome
of the tax audits and the objections, were purchased in
December 2006. Also, banker's undertakings of HK$13,197.475
were arranged by the Group and had been accepted by the IRD
as security for payment of the mentioned tax. The remaining
amounts of tax of HK$64,268,725 demanded by the IRD have
been held over unconditionally.

The IRD is currently drafting the statements of facts for
Commissioner’'s determination. This means the profits
assessed could be adjusted upward or downward depending
on the exact basis and calculation that are to be adopted in the
determination.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the Group has
grounds to appeal against any such determinations. Thus, the
directors believe that no provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax in
respect of the above mentioned assessment is necessary at
the present moment.

0. AEE

R-ZZNFEF+—ANE  BEBRER(HBEREL)
RARAAETHEARARGLADIHERA
AI([RBAEE]) EBEecZ2EamERAF([E
M A& 2]) KHop Fung (Overseas) Trading Limited
(MBRARNDR—AANE,/ —ANANEEZZT
T/ —TTNEIHREFERARBEERZ -8
MEZHNEETHBE RZZETZRF—AZ+X
H —Z2ERF-_ARAR-ZEZERFAZ
B #BBRaR LB ARZ —ANN\ES/
—NANEFE —ANWNE/ ZZTEZFR_FTZT
T/ BT FE_TT=F /ZTTNEF
MEEHHREBEUTRE  UETERBREAR
BT ENFNITEZARES B BB
BARRZEEREAAZBRERZZEZERFTA
TAARAREGLESTRHE-_ZSTNFE T
AER_TTRE / —_TTNEIHFEZTIM
= .

EEZzBH REEIBREXZHREEA
83,056,444 B 70 - AEBERAT A ZE T A
ERIRE Y -

REBRARIERREER - AHE LH1$1,992,965
BLIRMAL DR - ETRFEF AN _TTF
“ A AL REMAEE 2T H S 5 480,000
78 70 . 1,400,0008 TiREM S @ AFRBEZ K
RERSZER - ZFR_ZTZF+_ARLH
BUN—TETRFE /T FFEEZFHEE
1,7172798 L@ B UM T Z IR EH R E
ZHEER oI NREE B T HER 1T A IE13,197475
B EAYXNERBRRZER MHEBEE
XA o B BT B sk 2 H £ Fi 18 64,268,725
BT EEEKGEE -

HREBESHEBERE UEXBEAT  BX
FETEWREFRAOBELERHE T
BRI AL s T R R -

ARBEERR AEEERHREZFRE °
Bt - EXHERAKHAN LAFRIERTERN
G zRE -
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31.RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS EEALRS

a) During the year, the Group engaged Hop Fung (Australia) a) FA - ANE&EHE FAHop Fung (Australia) Pty Ltd
Pty Ltd as the Group’s purchase agent in Australia at an BAREBRBEMNZEBREA  TRERAKN
annual fee of HK$1 for the agency services rendered SERECAREBRBZNEE IS T - BEFL
to the Group. The total value of goods purchased under HZ PR ERRE 2 8 54 {E 46,688,000
this arrangement from the suppliers amounted to BT (ZEE )\ 15,196,000/ 7T) ° KA R &
HK$6,688,000 (2008: HK$15,196,000). Hop Fung (Australia) 17 % F 57 7 B %t 4 B Hop Fung (Australia) Pty
Pty Ltd is a company in which Mr. Hui Sum Kwok, Lidh B EmiEm o
executive director of the Company, has beneficial interest.

b) The remuneration of directors, who are key management b) BAXEEFTFEEBAEZEENFENRNZH
of the Group, during the year are disclosed in note 12. SR EFENREE - NTES NG RAEEE
The remuneration of executive directors, who are also ZERITHRAE BKEsHEeBFMEES
the key executives of the Group, is determined by the BFEARBREEMSBEET -

remuneration committee having regard to the performance
of individuals and market trends.

32.SUMMARISED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL 332K AT BRIBEPE

POSITION OFTHE COMPANY

2009 2008

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHAT

Investment in subsidiaries RHBRRIZIEE 113,455 113,455
Amounts due from subsidiaries & U BT /B8 A B 5RIE 1,309,217 1,213,611
Contributions to subsidiaries BELIEINGIE:ES 80,247 31,196
Deposits and prepayments e RBEMANZK 149 165
Bank balances and cash RITEBR LIRS 464 13,102
Amounts due to subsidiaries FE - BT /BB A B 5RIE (1,005,980) (878,238)
Other payables and accrued charges E h JE A 5RIE & FEET 2 (4,795) (6,011)
Taxation 18 (563) (872)
492,194 486,408

Share capital f& 7 48,292 48,292
Share premium and reserves A& 19 % (8 I {7 1 443,902 438,116
492,194 486,408
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33.PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES BEIEMBELAEHR
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries, all of which are wholly- RZEZNFR_ZETENFF+_A=+—H &
owned by the Company, as at 31st December, 2009 and 2008 RAIETZEREZEZEMNBARFENOT :

are as follows:

Place of incorporation

or registration/ Issued and fully paid share
Name of subsidiary operations capital/contributed capital Principal activities
MEARER MR, ¥ DRTRAZRA BEHARS ZEBEL
ChunYik (Macao Commercial Macau Ordinary shares  Trading of paper ware
Offshore) Limited S MOP100,000 products
EamORMBEEEFERS) L 3@A%100,000RF% HmE S
BRAF
Fung Kong Hop Fung Paper Hong Kong Ordinary shares  Provision of
Ware Factory Limited =58 HK$100 management service
ElEeEBmmEERA LTEAR100B T REBTERS
Non-voting deferred shares
HK$3,000,000
(Note)
EITRREIETER
3,000,000/% 7T
(PR 5E)
Fung Kong Shing Fung Paper Hong Kong Ordinary shares  Investment holding
Ware Factory Limited 5 HK$2 & #ER
B el 3B 2 4R qm R B PR A B TR 2ABTT
Gong Ming Hop Fung Paper Hong Kong Ordinary shares  Provision of management
Ware Factory Limited =8 HK$100 service
NAEEEmBERA A L@k 1005 T RHEERSE
Non-voting deferred shares
HK$3,000,000
(Note)
B ERIRTER
3,000,000/% 7T
(B 7E)
Green Forest (QingXin) Paper PRC Contributed capital Manufacturing and trading
Industrial Limited Fh US$112,247,803 of paper and paper ware
BRECCEH)MKEER AT (equivalent to approximately products

HK$764,494,899) MERBKMzHERE S
B AL AN112,247,803% 7T (49
18 & 764,494,899 7T )
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33.PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 33.XEMBLATER (&)

(continued)

Place of incorporation

or registration/ Issued and fully paid share

Name of subsidiary operations capital/contributed capital Principal activities

i NG MY, EEmE DRTRARREA BHBRE FEEL

Hop Fung Consultants Hong Kong Ordinary shares  Provision of management
Limited s HK$2 service

SEEMARAR T@akotr RUHEBERS

Hop Fung Group Company

British Virgin Islands/

Ordinary shares

Investment holding

Limited Hong Kong US$600 % & 5= 1%
REBRLES /B & A AR6003 7T
Hop Fung International Hong Kong Ordinary shares  Provision of accounting
Enterprise Limited BB HK$2 service
SEERAEFRAA TEk2ET RESFTRS
Man Shung (Macao Macau Ordinary shares  Manufacturing and trading
Commercial Offshore) R MOP100,000 of paper ware products
Limited EiBA%100,0000RF % HEAMRARES

BB CRFIBER B X RH)
BER AT

Top Develop Limited

British Virgin Islands

Ordinary shares

Investment holding and

HRERAA HBRERTHS US$1 trading of paper
TBERI1EZET REEREERES
R KmARAA * PRC Contributed capital Manufacturing and trading
=8| HK$20,600,000 of paper ware products
E 720,600,000 SEAmEERE S
2B ORIDABERA A * PRC Contributed capital  Manufacturing and trading
2] HK$22,000,000 of paper ware products
B HARA22,000,0008 T HELAMRERES
Note:  The non-voting deferred shares, which are not held by the Group, M : ERERECERYIIBAEERS BEERLITE

M EIKAR S WA AR EMRRBFAG B
MoHFERARNE EREZERN  RNBRE  REA
AARERMARRE  BEERMDFAEARRETBR
#:8 A%k 100,000,000,000,0007 L& AT 2 EL 5 Kk ©

practically carry no right to dividends or to receive notice of or to
attend or vote at any annual general meeting of the companies.
On winding up, the holders of the deferred shares are entitled to
the distribution after the distribution of HK$100,000,000 million
to holders of ordinary shares, as specified in the articles of
association.
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HOP FUNG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
GEKEEZRERLF

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FREMBREMEE

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2009
E-EFAF LAt —ALEE

33.PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 33.XEMBLATER (&)

(continued)

Other than Hop Fung Group Company Limited, all subsidiaries Hop Fung Group Company Limitedsh » E A

are indirectly held by the Company. MBARHYBALRMERS

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities subsisting at R-EZNFER _ETZNF+-_A=+—HEF

31st December, 2009 and 2008 or at any time during the year. AEMARE SHEBARYEBRES -

*  Green Forest (QingXin) Paper Industrial Limited, 3R 52 z5 K A G R A * OREGBNBEERAR  RREHARBRATNKE
7l and & L4 SOXR YI)A IR 2 &) are wholly foreign owned enterprises. BEBORBRARTHAREENEDRE -

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group which, in FRINEAR AR EERABHAETBXLENREER

the opinion of directors of the Company, principally affected EEBVEALSEWNBAR -EERAE  HHM

the results and assets of the Group. To give details of other WEAREAHIYeEHEERANRITE

subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result in
particulars of excessive length.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
MEE=

HOP FUNG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
SEEEERAERLQE

Year ended 31st December,

BE+-A=1+—-BLEE

2005 2006 2007 2008 2009
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
F& T FAT FE T FH& T FExT
RESULTS E
Revenue g 25 788,555 799,936 925,533 1,033,152 923,366
Cost of sales S5 B AR (634,422) (617735)  (713,899)  (835,341)  (727,762)
Gross profit ES 154,133 182,201 211,634 197,811 195,604
Other income H A e A 15,728 17,742 18,526 20,734 14,690
Selling and distribution costs HE ko HK AR (37,277 (39,946) (45,355) (46,843) (36,234)
Administrative expenses TR X (37,724) (42,614) (58,491) (62,198) (61,902)
Other expenses Hihp > (18,601) (22,081) (24,686) (22,445) (39,052)
Finance costs B 75 B AR (5,924) (8,644) (6,837) (11,869) (10,601)
Changes in fair value of unsecured % % # 4 % (& &
structured borrowing NEEZEH - (12,366) 9,762 (7,157) 9,464
Changes in fair value of PTESBITA
derivative financial instruments NEEZEE 474 (4,278) 10,561 (20,331) 23,452
Profit before taxation 75 B A1 70,809 70,014 115,114 47,702 95,421
Income tax expense FriSBif (1,096) (1,716) (3,370) (6,270) (11,656)
Profit for the year FEAE 69,713 68,298 111,744 41,432 83,765
At 31st December,
R+=—HA=+—H
2005 2006 2007 2008 2009
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000
FAT F& T FA T FE T FExT
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERERE
Total assets BEE 663,726 843,030 1,382,537 1,581,391 1,737,719
Total liabilities B (& 325,401 358,934 638,795 809,314 883,304
Equity A% 7N 338,325 484,096 743,742 772,077 854,415
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